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Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2010 

Assets (amounts in euros)

  Notes 2010 2009
Non-current assets 102.624.296,41 96.947.782,43
Tangible fixed assets 8 96.254.611,42 90.518.295,06
Investment properties 12 4.534.300,00 4.534.300,00
Goodwill
Intangible assets 7 666.137,20 706.401,67
Biological assets
Financial holdings - equity method 5, 14 434.247,79 453.785,70
Financial holdings - other methods 5, 15 25.000,00 25.000,00
Shareholders/Partners
Other financial assets 28.1.2 710.000,00 710.000,00
Deferred tax assets

Current assets 12.121.540,42 14.002.109,85
Inventories 19 698.968,54 683.516,33
Biological assets
Customers 28.2.3 1.454.204,13 7.801.927,56
Advances to suppliers
State and other public bodies 32 3.045.642,10 892.605,98
Shareholders/Partners
Other accounts receivable 28.2.3, 33 5.410.028,68 4.028.419,32
Deferrals 34 343.710,48 400.073,57
Financial assets held for trading
Other financial assets 28.1.2 59.461,61
Non-current assets held for sale
Cash and bank deposits 4 1.109.524,88 195.567,09

Total assets 114.745.836,83 110.949.892,28

                                 Equity and Liabilities (amounts in euros)

Equity

Notes 2010 2009
Paid-up capital 28.4.1 79.649.000,00 79.649.000,00
Own shares (quotas)
Other equity instruments
Issue premiums
Legal reserves 28.4.2 74.907,42 74.907,42
Other reserves 28.4.2 25.727,80 25.727,80
Retained earnings -365.307.988,74 -342.042.468,39
Adjustments to financial assets 28.4.4 122.096,76 96.111,87
Revaluation surplus 28.4.3 45.960.129,43 46.373.157,83
Other changes in equity 23, 28.4.5 1.406.102,91 2.171.618,37

Net income for the period -37.677.163,38 -23.652.563,86

Total equity -275.747.187,80 -237.304.508,96

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities 283.003.362,30 315.526.491,41
Provisions 22 4.599.763,02 4.596.312,75
Loans received 28.1.1,10 241.258.602,25 293.914.170,67
Post-employment benefit liabilities 29 929.257,00 865.021,00
Deferred tax liabilities
Other accounts payable
Other financial liabilities 28.1.3 36.215.740,03 16.150.986,99

Current liabilities 107.489.662,33 32.727.909,83
Suppliers 31 4.634.972,13 7.008.228,36
Advances from customers
State and other public bodies 32 977.855,64 1.394.209,60
Shareholders/Partners
Loans received 28.1.1,10 94.144.001,96 15.740.885,94
Other accounts payable 31, 33 6.779.328,66 7.640.586,05
Deferrals 34 882.612,00 897.716,54
Financial liabilities held for trading
Other financial liabilities 28.1.3 70.891,94 46.283,34
Non-current liabilities held for sale

Total liabilities 390.493.024,63 348.254.401,24

Total equity and liabilities 114.745.836,83 110.949.892,28

The Board of Directors
               Chairwoman

                  Members

Certified Accountant number 6622



Accounts for the  Financial Year and Appendices 2010 107

Income Statement by Nature 
Period ended on 31 December 2010

Certified Accountant number 6622

Income Statement by Function
Period ended on 31 December 2010

Certified Accountant number 6622

The Board of Directors
               Chairwoman

                  Members

The Board of Directors
               Chairwoman

                  Members

Income and Costs (amounts in euros)

Notes 2010 2009
Sales and services 21 49.346.138,90 47.732.156,26
Operating grants 23 19.930.282,93 20.137.879,86
Gains/losses imputed to subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures 14 -19.537,91 18.576,37
Variation in production inventories 19 -193,09 -3.582,24
In-house works 7,8 33.294,45 136.311,80
Cost of goods sold and materials consumed 19 -1.421.071,04 -1.575.103,40
External supplies and services 35 -32.611.139,44 -31.603.203,89
Staff costs 36, 29 -39.999.492,59 -40.731.026,86
Impairment of inventories (losses/reversals) 19 -12.362,50 171.919,16
Impairment of debts receivable (losses/reversions)
Provisions (increases/reductions) 22 -3.450,27 -358.288,94
Impairment of investments not subject to depreciation/amortisation (losses/reversals)
Fair value increases/reductions 12 -2.491.077,27
Other income and gains 38 3.399.112,85 3.791.121,74
Other costs and losses 37 -1.367.897,18 -1.291.907,40
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation -2.726.314,89 -6.066.224,81

Costs/reversals of depreciation and amortisation 7,8 -6.527.901,47 -8.026.423,27
Impairment of investments subject to depreciation/amortisation (losses/reversals) 13 -1.809.910,65
Net operating income (earnings before interest and taxes) -9.254.216,36 -15.902.558,73

Interest and similar income received 11, 28.1.3 4,02 2.717.699,34
Interest and similar expenses paid 11,28.1.3 -28.383.141,88 -10.436.501,11
Pre-tax profit -37.637.354,22 -23.621.360,50

Income tax for the period -39.809,16 -31.203,36

Net income for the period 28.4.6 -37.677.163,38 -23.652.563,86

                                      Income and Costs

2010 2009

Sales and services 69.276.421,83 67.870.036,12
Cost of the sales and services rendered -66.407.389,99 -67.136.802,61
Gross profit 2.869.031,84 733.233,51

Other income 3.674.790,43 4.714.096,15
Distribution costs -4.843.796,71 -5.069.040,41
Administrative costs -7.921.731,52 -9.199.586,72
Research and development costs -4.583,28 -9.916,38

Other costs -3.027.927,12 -7.071.344,88

Net operating income (earnings before interest and taxes) -9.254.216,36 -15.902.558,73

Financing costs (net) -28.383.137,86 -7.718.801,77
Pre-tax profit -37.637.354,22 -23.621.360,50

Income tax for the period -39.809,16 -31.203,36

Net income for the period -37.677.163,38 -23.652.563,86

(amounts in euros)
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Statement of Change in Equity 
As at 31 December 2010

Statement of Change in Equity  
As at 31 December  2009

The Board of Directors
               Chairwoman

                  Members

Certified Accountant number 6622

Description Notes
Paid-up
capital

Legal
 reserves

Other
reserves 

Retained
earnings

Adjustments 
to financial  

assets

Revaluation
surplus

Other
changes
in equity

Net
income for 
the period

TOTAL

Position at the Beginning of the Period of 2010       6 79.649.000,00 74.907,42 25.727,80 -342.042.468,39 96.111,87 46.373.157,83 2.171.618,37 -23.652.563,86 -237.304.508,96

Changes in the Period

First-time Adoption of the New Accounting Standards

Alterations of Accounting Policies

Conversion Differences of the Financial Statements

Realisation of the Revaluation Surplus of Tangible and 
Intangible Fixed Assets

28.4.3 413.028,40 -413.028,40

Revaluation Surplus of Tangible and Intangible Fixed 
Assets and Respective Changes

28.4.3

Adjustments for Deferred Taxes

Other Recognised Alterations in Equity -23.678.548,75 25.984,89 -765.515,46 23.652.563,86 -765.515,46

7 0,00 0,00 0,00 -23.265.520,35 25.984,89 -413.028,40 -765.515,46 23.652.563,86 -765.515,46

Net Income for the Period                                    8 -37.677.163,38 -37.677.163,38

Comprehensive Net Income                         9=7+8 -14.024.599,52 -38.442.678,84

Operations with Shareholders in the Period

Realisation of Capital
Realisation of Issue Premiums
Distributions
Cash Entries for Coverage of Losses
Other Operations

10 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00

Position at the End of the Period of 2010      6+7+8+10 79.649.000,00 74.907,42 25.727,80 -365.307.988,74 122.096,76 45.960.129,43 1.406.102,91 -37.677.163,38 -275.747.187,80

Description Notes
Paid-up
capital

Legal
 reserves

Other
reserves 

Retained
earnings

Adjustments 
to financial  

assets

Revaluation
surplus

Other
changes
in equity

Net
income for 
the period

TOTAL

Position at the Beginning of the Period of 2009       1 79.649.000,00 74.907,42 25.727,80 -298.205.466,71 26.464,11 16.264.033,10 3.209.860,07 -28.189.013,94 -227.144.488,15

Changes in the Period 0,00

First-time Adoption of the New Accounting Standards 2.4.2 -16.022.748,57 21.566.349,32 -482,59 5.543.118,16

Alterations of Accounting Policies 0,00

Conversion Differences of the Financial Statements 0,00

Realisation of the Revaluation Surplus of Tangible and 
Intangible Fixed Assets

28.4.3 397.552,26 -397.552,26 0,00

Revaluation Surplus of Tangible and Intangible Fixed 
Assets and Respective Changes

28.4.3 8.940.327,67 8.940.327,67

Adjustments for Deferred Taxes 0,00

Other Recognised Alterations in Equity -28.211.805,37 69.647,76 -1.037.759,11 28.189.013,94 -990.902,78

2 0,00 0,00 0,00 -43.837.001,68 69.647,76 30.109.124,73 -1.038.241,70 28.189.013,94 13.492.543,05

Net Income for the Period                                     3 -23.652.563,86 -23.652.563,86

Comprehensive Net Income                         4=2+3 4.536.450,08 -10.160.020,81

Operations with Shareholders in the Period

Realisation of Capital
Realisation of Issue Premiums
Distributions
Cash Entries for Coverage of Losses
Other Operations

5 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00

Position at the End of the Period of 2009  6=1+2+3+5 79.649.000,00 74.907,42 25.727,80 -342.042.468,39 96.111,87 46.373.157,83 2.171.618,37 -23.652.563,86 -237.304.508,96

Amounts in euros

Amounts in euros
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Cash Flow Statement
Period ended on 31 December 2010

(amounts in euros)

Notes 2010 2009

Cash flow from operating activities - direct method

Receipts from customers 59.579.337,67 49.971.495,29
Payments to suppliers -39.335.751,11 -40.453.433,87
Staff payments -32.867.649,34 -33.614.857,38
Cash generated by operations -12.624.062,78 -24.096.795,96

Payment/receipt of income tax 34.943,53 68.137,96
Other receipts/ payments 10.609.223,34 19.374.402,06
Cash flow from operating activities (1) -1.979.895,91 -4.654.255,94

Cash flow from investment activities

Payments relative to:

Tangible fixed assets -8.030.815,18 -1.085.622,95
Intangible assets -108.673,45 -318.839,64
Financial investment -260.056,12 -400.000,00
Other assets 0,00 0,00

-8.399.544,75 -1.804.462,59
Receipts derived from:
Tangible fixed assets 15.815,00 71.561,68
Intangible assets 0,00 0,00
Financial investment 0,00 0,00
Other assets 112.102,48 0,00
Investment grants 3.754,72 0,00
Interest and similar income 2,91 180.550,11
Dividends 0,00 47.090,69

131.675,11 299.202,48
Cash flow from investment activities (2) -8.267.869,64 -1.505.260,11

Cash flow from financing activities

Receipts derived from:
Loans received 48.610.000,00 351.187.000,00
Realisation of capital and other equity instruments 0,00 0,00
Coverage of losses 0,00 0,00
Donations 0,00 0,00
Other financing operations 0,00 0,00

48.610.000,00 351.187.000,00
Payments relative to:
Loans received -40.810.000,00 -320.325.006,37
Interest and similar costs -8.395.320,00 -8.843.340,97
Dividends 0,00 0,00
Reductions of capital and other equity instruments 0,00 0,00
Other financing operations -2.646.830,86 -2.076.957,65

-51.852.150,86 -331.245.304,99
Cash flow from financing activities (3) -3.242.150,86 19.941.695,01

Variation in cash and cash equivalent       (1+2+3) -13.489.916,41 13.782.178,96
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period -4.962.966,14 -18.745.145,10
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 4 -18.452.882,55 -4.962.966,14

Cash and cash equivalent

2010 2009

Cash 54.204,36 60.069,72
Demand bank deposits 1.055.320,52 135.497,37
Cash investments 0,00 0,00
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet 1.109.524,88 195.567,09
Bank overdrafts -19.562.407,43 -5.158.533,23
Cash and cash equivalent in the cash flow statement -18.452.882,55 -4.962.966,14

Certified Accountant number 6622 The Board of Directors
                 Chairwoman
                     Members
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Period ended on 31.12.2010 
(Amounts in euros)

1. Introductory Note

Sociedade de Transportes Colectivos do Porto, S.A. was instituted by Decree-Law 202/94 of 23 July, as a 
public limited liability company of exclusively public capital, having succeeded Serviço de Transportes Colec-
tivos do Porto, created by Decree-Law 38144, of 30 December 1950. Its head office is at Avenida Fernão de 
Magalhães, 1862 - 13th floor, in Porto.

Sociedade de Transportes Colectivos do Porto, S.A. ensures the delivery of the public road transport of pas-
sengers on an exclusive basis within the limits of the municipality of Porto, and on a general competitive basis 
in the adjoining municipalities - Matosinhos, Maia, Valongo, Gondomar and Vila Nova de Gaia – within the 
Metropolitan Area of Porto. STCP mainly operates buses and, to a lesser extent, trams.

Under the implementation in 2008 of an Integrated Management System for the Environment, Quality and 
Safety and Health at Work (SIG-QAS) with STCP having received the respective certifications of the standards 
NP EN ISO 9001:2008-Quality, NP EN ISO 14001:2004-Environment and OHSAS 18001:2007-Security and  
Health, the Annual Monitoring Inspections of the Certification of the Integrated Management System took 
place during 2009 and 2010, carried out by a team of APCER auditors. Following the Annual Monitoring 
Inspections the certification attributed in 2008 was maintained.

In 2009, Sociedade de Transportes Colectivos do Porto, S.A. began all the preparations with a view to the 
installation of a new integrated management system for the administrative services of all the areas of the 
company. The new system, awarded to the company PRIMAVERA, replaced the SAP Management System 
in January 2010. In 2010, the work on the implementation of this system began at the same time as the 
start-up of its use, implying that this was a project of continuous improvement whenever deficiencies were 
detected and/or functionalities were found to be missing during its actual use. It is expected that this project 
will be concluded in 2011. 

In 2009, Sociedade de Transportes Colectivos do Porto, S.A. signed contracts for the acquisition of 35 new 
public service vehicles, 15 double-decker buses and 20 articulated buses, involving an investment above 
11 million euros. The vehicles are equipped with diesel engines, in accordance with the Euro V standard for 
articulated buses and EEV standard for double-decker buses.

In 2010, the 20 articulated buses were received having started operating in September. The 15 double-decker 
buses were received at the end of 2010, and began operating early in 2011.

In April 2009, STCP amortised a Schuldschein loan of 25,000 thousand euros and, in November, amortised 
a debenture loan of 29,000 thousand euros. Both loans had begun in 2002 and were backed by the Portu-
guese State.

In October 2009, Sociedade de Transportes Colectivos do Porto, S.A. issued a debenture loan of 120,000 
thousand euros at five years, guaranteed by the Portuguese State. The bonds were listed for trading on Euro-
next Lisbon. This loan met the objective of re-balancing the company’s debt structure, by consolidating part 
of the short term liabilities.
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In 2010, the funding was received for the acquisition of 20 articulated vehicles of the value of 5,698 thou-
sand euros, through a financial leasing contract.

The attached financial statements are prepared in euros. Foreign operations are included in the financial 
statements in accordance with the policies described in point 3.8.
	

2. Accounting standards for the preparation of the financial statements

2.1. Accounting standards adopted

The attached financial statements were prepared under the provisions in force in Portugal established in De-
cree-Law 158/2009, of 13 July (rectified), and in accordance with the conceptual structure, accounting and 
financial reporting standards and consigned interpretative standards, respectively, in notices 15652/2009, 
15655/2009 and 15653/2009, of 27 August 2009.

2.2. Derogations to the adopted accounting standards

Not applicable.

2.3. Non-comparable contents of the accounts

Not applicable.

2.4. First-time adoption of the NCRF: transitory disclosures.

The first-time adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter designated NCRF), 
implied the adjustment of the following accounting policies:

•	 Valuation of the tangible fixed assets: annulment of the revaluation of the tangible fixed assets 
made in accordance with the fiscal criteria so that the initial valuation of the assets is their pure 
historical cost. This was followed by the revaluation of the group of buildings and land, with the 
reference date of 01.01.2009, to their fair value, based on the assessment made by independent 
and accredited experts (CPU Consultores de Avaliação, Lda.) and which was reflected in the 
separate accounts of STCP under IAS/IFRS reporting;

•	 Derecognition of tangible and intangible fixed assets: annulment, against the accumulated net 
income, of all the tangible and intangible assets which do not meet the criteria for recognition 
established in the Conceptual Structure and NCRF 6 and 7;

•	 Non-repayable grants related to tangible and intangible fixed assets: reclassification to equity, in 
accordance with the provisions in NCRF 22;

•	 Loans received: in accordance with NCRF 27 loans are now valued at their amortised cost, which 
implied the necessary adjustments and reclassifications in order to comply with the standard 
provisions;
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•	 Exceptional net income: the exceptional costs and income headings, established in the POC 
(Portuguese Official Accounting Plan), were reclassified in accordance with their nature under 
operating losses, costs, income and gains;

•	 Financial holdings in associated companies: the application of the equity method, pursuant to 
the provisions in NCRF 13, led to alterations in the accounting value of the associated compa-
nies, which were then reflected in the respective valuation adjustments;

•	 Cash flow statement: the adjustments which were made were not significant since they involve the reclas-
sification of the exceptional payments and receipts to operating payments and receipts.

The transition adjustments made are in conformity with NCRF 3 and are detailed as follows:

2.4.1. . Balance Sheet

1-Jan-09 31-Dec-09

Assets SNC
Transition

adjustments
POC SNC

Transition
adjustments

POC

Non-current assets 98.445.291,94 22.677.113,00 75.768.178,94 96.947.782,43 27.396.680,03 69.551.102,40
Tangible fixed assets 97.656.203,63 22.675.805,78 74.980.397,85 90.518.295,06 22.861.076,54 67.657.218,52
Investment properties 0,00 0,00 0,00 4.534.300,00 4.534.300,00 0,00
Intangible assets 18.878,98 0,00 18.878,98 706.401,67 -3,73 706.405,40
Financial holdings - equity method 435.209,33 1.307,22 433.902,11 453.785,70 1.307,22 452.478,48
Financial holdings - other methods 25.000,00 0,00 25.000,00 25.000,00 0,00 25.000,00
Other financial assets 310.000,00 0,00 310.000,00 710.000,00 0,00 710.000,00

Current assets 16.325.459,48 -10.342,25 16.335.801,73 14.002.109,85 14.164,15 13.987.945,70
Inventories 738.916,64 -10.342,25 749.258,89 683.516,33 14.164,15 669.352,18
Customers 5.920.137,08 5.920.137,08 7.801.927,56 7.801.927,56
State and other public bodies 2.695.726,64 2.695.726,64 892.605,98 892.605,98
Shareholders/Partners 47.090,69 0,00 47.090,69 0,00 0,00 0,00
Other accounts receivable 6.427.190,92 6.427.190,92 4.028.419,32 4.028.419,32
Deferrals 160.868,90 0,00 160.868,90 400.073,57 0,00 400.073,57
Other financial assets 50.537,50 0,00 50.537,50 0,00 0,00 0,00
Cash and bank deposits 284.991,11 0,00 284.991,11 195.567,09 0,00 195.567,09

Total assets 114.770.751,42 22.666.770,75 92.103.980,67 110.949.892,28 27.410.844,18 83.539.048,10
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2.4.2. Retained earnings

1-Jan-09 31-Dec-09

Equity and liabilities SNC
Transition

adjustments
POC SNC

Transition
adjustments

POC

Paid-up capital 79.649.000,00 0,00 79.649.000,00 79.649.000,00 0,00 79.649.000,00
Legal reserves 74.907,42 0,00 74.907,42 74.907,42 0,00 74.907,42
Other reserves 25.727,80 0,00 25.727,80 25.727,80 0,00 25.727,80
Retained earnings -314.228.215,28 -16.022.748,57 -298.205.466,71 -342.042.468,39 1.350.932,16 -343.393.400,55
Adjustments to financial assets 26.464,11 0,00 26.464,11 96.111,87 0,00 96.111,87
Revaluation surplus 37.830.382,42 21.566.349,32 16.264.033,10 46.373.157,83 30.233.857,42 16.139.300,41
Other changes in equity 3.209.377,48 -482,59 3.209.860,07 2.171.618,37 -5.537,23 2.177.155,60

Net income for the period -28.189.013,94 0,00 -28.189.013,94 -23.652.563,86 -4.152.456,68 -19.500.107,18

Net income for the period -221.601.369,99 5.543.118,16 -227.144.488,15 -237.304.508,96 27.426.795,67 -264.731.304,63

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities 198.274.226,48 17.057.533,98 181.216.692,50 315.526.491,41 16.077.516,34 299.448.975,07
Provisions 4.238.023,81 0,00 4.238.023,81 4.596.312,75 0,00 4.596.312,75
Loans received 176.075.954,08 -66.118,61 176.142.072,69     293.914.170,67 -73.470,65 293.987.641,32
Post-employment benefit liabilities 836.596,00 0,00 836.596,00 865.021,00 0,00 865.021,00
Other financial liabilities 17.123.652,59 17.123.652,59 0,00 16.150.986,99 16.150.986,99

Current liabilities 138.097.894,93 66.118,61 138.031.776,32 32.727.909,83 -16.093.467,83 48.821.377,66
Suppliers 9.590.564,31 9.590.564,31 7.008.228,36 7.008.228,36
State and other public bodies 990.742,70 990.742,70 1.394.209,60 1.394.209,60
Loans received 118.249.679,29 66.118,61 118.183.560,68 15.740.885,94 57.519,16 15.683.366,78
Other accounts payable 8.309.555,42 8.309.555,42 7.640.586,05 7.640.586,05
Deferrals 957.353,21 0,00 957.353,21 897.716,54 0,00 897.716,54
Other financial liabilities 0,00 0,00 0,00 46.283,34 -16.150.986,99 16.197.270,33

Total liabilities 336.372.121,41 17.123.652,59 319.248.468,82 348.254.401,24 -15.951,49 348.270.352,73

Total equity and liabilities 114.770.751,42 22.666.770,75 92.103.980,67 110.949.892,28 27.410.844,18 83.539.048,10

Account 56 - Retained Earnings 1-Jan-09 31-Dec-09

Balance pursuant to the POC accounting standards -298.205.466,71 -343.393.400,55
Use for the year of the SNC revaluation reserve to cover losses 397.552,26

Annulment of the POC revaluation reserve 1.727.182,23 1.602.449,54

Recognised impairment of tangible fixed assets -617.725,77 -617.725,77

Derecognition of tangible and intangible fixed assets 482,59 482,59

Adjustments - adoption of the amortised cost method 0,00 46.856,33

Adjustments - adoption of the fair value of financial instruments -17.123.652,59 0,00

Adjustments - equity method 1.307,22 -68.340,54

Adjustments - impairment of inventories -10.342,25 -10.342,25

Total adjustments made -16.022.748,57 1.350.932,16

Balance pursuant to the current accounting standards (SNC) -314.228.215,28 -342.042.468,39
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2.4.3. Income statement by nature

2.4.4. Income statement by function

31 Dec-09

Income and Costs SNC
Transition

adjustments
POC

Sales and services 47.732.156,26 47.732.156,26
Operating grants 20.137.879,86 20.137.879,86
Gains/losses imputed to subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures 18.576,37 18.576,37
Variation in production inventories -3.582,24 -3.582,24
In-house works 136.311,80 136.311,80
Cost of goods sold and materials consumed -1.575.103,40 -1.575.103,40
External supplies and services -31.603.203,89 -1.725,78 -31.601.478,11
Staff costs -40.731.026,86 1.725,78 -40.732.752,64
Impairment of inventories (losses/reversals) 171.919,16 24.506,40 147.412,76
Provisions (increases/reductions) -358.288,94 0,00 -358.288,94
Fair value increases/reductions -2.491.077,27 -2.491.077,27 0,00
Other income and gains 3.791.121,74 -298.170,36 4.089.292,10
Other costs and losses -1.291.907,40 462.603,99 -1.754.511,39
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation -6.066.224,81 -2.302.137,24 -3.764.087,57

Costs/reversals of depreciation and amortisation -8.026.423,27 80.227,38 -8.106.650,65
Impairment of investments subject to depreciation/amortisation (losses/reversals) -1.809.910,65 -1.809.910,65 0,00
Net operating income -15.902.558,73 -4.031.820,51 -11.870.738,22

Interest and similar income received 2.717.699,34 372.872,76 2.344.826,58
Interest and similar expenses paid -10.436.501,11 -493.508,93 -9.942.992,18
Pre-tax profit -23.621.360,50 -4.152.456,68 -19.468.903,82

Income tax for the period -31.203,36 0,00 -31.203,36

Net income for the period -23.652.563,86 -4.152.456,68 -19.500.107,18

31 Dec-09

Income and Costs SNC
Transition

adjustments
POC

Sales and services 67.870.036,12 0,00 67.870.036,12
Cost of the sales and services rendered -67.136.802,61 0,00 -67.136.802,61
Gross profit 733.233,51 0,00 733.233,51

Other income 4.714.096,15 270.955,94 4.443.140,21
Distribution costs -5.069.040,41 0,00 -5.069.040,41
Administrative costs -9.199.586,72 -726.379,17 -8.473.207,55
Research and development costs -9.916,38 -0,01 -9.916,37
Other costs -7.071.344,88 -3.576.397,27 -3.494.947,61
Net operating income (earnings before interest and taxes) -15.902.558,73 -4.031.820,51 -11.870.738,22

Financing costs (net) -7.718.801,77 -120.636,17 -7.598.165,60
Pre-tax profit -23.621.360,50 -4.152.456,68 -19.468.903,82

Income tax for the period -31.203,36 0,00 -31.203,36

Net income for the period -23.652.563,86 -4.152.456,68 -19.500.107,18
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3. Main accounting policies

The main accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the attached financial statements are as follows:

3.1. Basis of presentation

The attached financial statements were prepared under the assumption of the continuity of the operations, 
based on STCP’s accounting ledgers and records, kept in accordance with the generally accepted accounting 
principles.

3.2. Financial investments

Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled companies and associated companies are recorded through the 
equity method. Pursuant to the equity method, financial holdings are recorded initially at their acquisition 
cost and are adjusted subsequently in accordance with the alterations which occur, after their acquisition, in 
the share of the financial holding in the net assets of the corresponding entities. The net income includes its 
respective portion in the net income of these entities.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of each acqui-
red entity, on the acquisition date, is recognised as goodwill and is maintained in the value of the financial 
investment. If the differential between the acquisition cost and fair value of the acquired net assets and 
liabilities is negative, this value is recognised as income for the year.

An assessment is made on an annual basis of the financial investments when there are indications that the 
asset may be impaired, with any impairment losses which are shown to exist being recognised as costs in 
the income statement. When impairment losses, which have been recognised in the previous year, no longer 
exist, they are reversed.

When the amount of the stake of the company in the accumulated losses of the participant exceed the 
value for which the investment is recorded, the investment is reported at null value, unless the company has 
assumed commitments to cover the losses of the associated company, in which case a provision is recorded 
to meet these obligations.

Unrealised gains in transactions with subsidiaries, jointly controlled companies and associated companies 
are eliminated in proportion to the interest of the participant in them, against the corresponding heading of 
the investment in the participated company. Likewise, unrealised losses are also eliminated, but only to the 
extent that the loss is not the result of a situation where the transferred asset is impaired.

3.3. Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are recorded through the acquisition method. The corresponding 
cost is determined as the aggregate, on the acquisition date, of:

•	 Fair value of the assets which have been or are to be delivered;

•	 Fair value of the liabilities which have been incurred or assumed;
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•	 Fair value of own equity instruments issued by the company in exchange of control over the 
subsidiary; and

•	 Costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

When applicable, the cost of the business combination or acquisition includes the effect of contingent pay-
ments agreed under the transaction. Any subsequent alterations in these payments are recorded against the 
corresponding goodwill.

In the event of the initial recognition of an acquisition not being concluded by the end of the reporting period 
in which it occurred, the company reports provisional amounts for the items whose recognition is incomplete. 
These provisional amounts may be adjusted during a period of 12 months counting from the acquisition date.

3.4. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or groups for disposal are classified as held for sale when their book value is essentially 
recovered through a sale and not through its continued use. This condition applies only when its sale is highly 
probable and the non-current assets or groups for disposal are available for immediate sale in their present 
conditions. The corresponding sale must be concluded within a period of one year, counting from the date of 
the classification of the non-current assets or groups for disposal as available for sale.

When the group is committed to a plan to sell a subsidiary which involves the loss of control over it, all the assets 
and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale, provided that the requirements referred to in the 
previous paragraph are met, even if the company retains some minority interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets or groups for disposal classified as held for sale are measured at the lowest amount between 
their book value before the classification and their fair value minus the costs related to their sale.

Non-current assets or groups for disposal held for sale should not be the object of depreciation or amortisation.

3.5. Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the retribution which has been or will be received, taking into consi-
deration the value of any commercial discounts and quantities granted by the entity. The difference between 
the fair value and the nominal value of the retribution is recognised as revenue from interest. Revenue arising 
from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been met:

•	 All the risks and advantages of the ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer;

•	 The company does not maintain any control over the sold goods;

•	 The value of the revenue can be measured reliably;

•	 It is probable that the future economic benefits associated to the transaction will flow into 
the company;

•	 The costs incurred or to be incurred with respect to the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Revenue arising from the provision of services is recognised in accordance with the percentage completion of 
the transaction on the reporting date, provided that all the following conditions have been met:

•	 The value of the revenue can be measured reliably;

•	 It is probable that the future economic benefits associated to the transaction will flow into 
the company;

•	 The costs incurred or to be incurred with respect to the transaction can be measured reliably;

•	 The percentage completion of the transaction on the reporting date can be measured reliably.

Revenue arising from royalties is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the substance of the 
corresponding contracts, provided that it is likely that economic benefits will flow into the company and their 
value can be measured reliably.

The revenue from interest is recognised using the effective interest rate method, provided that it is likely that 
economic benefits will flow into the company and their value can be measured reliably.

Revenue arising from dividends must be recognised when the right of the company to receive the correspon-
ding value has been established.

3.6. Construction contracts

Not applicable.

3.7. Leases

Leases are classified as financial or operating leases according to the substance of the contracts in question 
and not their form. Lease contracts are classified as:

•	 Financial leases: if all the risks and advantages inherent to the possession of the leased asset are 
substantially transferred through them, or as:

•	 Operating leases: if all the risks and advantages inherent to the possession of the leased asset 
are not substantially transferred through them.

Assets acquired through financial leasing contracts, as well as the corresponding liabilities, are recorded at 
the beginning of the leasing at the lowest amount between the fair value of the assets and the present value 
of the minimum payments of the lease. Financial lease payments are divided between financial costs and re-
duction of the liability, in order to obtain a constant interest rate over the outstanding balance of the liability.

Operating lease payments are recognised as a cost, on a straight line basis, during the lease period. Any 
incentives which have been received are recorded as a liability, with their aggregate value being recognised 
as a reduction of the cost related to the lease, also on a straight line basis. Contingent rents are recognised 
as costs for the period in which they are incurred.

3.8. Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded initially at the exchange rate of the dates of the transactions.



118

On each reporting date, the book values of the monetary items denominated in foreign currency are updated 
to the exchange rates of that date.

Any currency conversion differences arising from the updates referred to above are recorded through profit 
or loss for the period when they are generated.

The volume of transactions of the company in currency other than the functional currency (euro) is practically 
nonexistent and immaterial.

3.9. Financial costs related to loans received

Financial costs related to loans received are recognised as costs in the financial statement for the year when they 
are incurred, in accordance with the accrual principle.

The financial costs of loans received related to the acquisition, construction or production of assets which 
may be qualified as such (tangible fixed assets in progress) are capitalised, and are an integral part of the 
cost of the asset. The capitalisation of these financial costs begins when expenses start to be incurred relative 
to the asset and when the activities required to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. 
This capitalisation ceases when all the activities required to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale 
have been concluded substantially. The capitalisation is suspended during extensive periods when the deve-
lopment of the abovementioned activities is interrupted.

Any income generated by loans received, related in advance to a specific investment, are deducted from the 
financial costs eligible for capitalisation.

3.10. Government grants

Government grants are recognised in accordance with their fair value when there is a reasonable guarantee 
that they will be received and that the company will comply with the conditions required for their attribution.

Any benefit arising from a Government financing (or equivalent) at an interest rate lower than that of the 
market is treated as a Government grant, and is measured as the difference between the value received and 
the fair value of the loan determined based on market interest rates.

Non-repayable Government grants related to tangible and intangible fixed assets are initially recorded in 
equity under the heading Other changes in equity - grants, and are subsequently imputed in a systematic 
manner to profit or loss as income, during the period of useful life of the respective assets.

Other Government grants are, in general, recognised as income in a systematic manner during the periods 
required to balance them with the cost they are supposed to compensate. Government grants intended to 
compensate losses that have already been incurred or which do not have associated future costs, are recog-
nised as income for the period when they become receivable.

STCP is subject to an administrative price system, which implies the attribution by the government of com-
pensatory indemnities, which are not re-payable, in order to partially fund its operations in compliance with 
its public service duties. STCP follows the criteria of recording the compensatory indemnities as operating 
grants for the year when they are attributed.
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3.11.  Post-retirement benefits

For the defined benefits plans, the corresponding cost is determined through the projected unit credit me-
thod, where the actuarial assessments are made on each reporting date.

The liability related to the payment of supplementary pensions, recognised on the balance sheet date, repre-
sents the present value of the liabilities related to defined benefits plans, adjusted for actuarial gains or losses 
and the cost of past service that have not been recognised and deducting the fair value of the net assets of 
the pensions fund, constituted for the effect. The costs related to past liabilities are recognised immediately 
through profit or loss, to the extent that the benefits have already been totally acquired.

3.12. Payments based on shares

Not applicable.

3.13. Income tax

Income tax corresponds to the sum of current tax and deferred tax. However, since the company has no fo-
recasted future profit, it cannot forecast the recovery of the losses which have been accumulated up to date. 
Therefore, it does not recognise any deferred tax assets or liabilities, since there is no forecast possibility of 
deduction of future tax profits from the tax losses reported up to date.

3.14. Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are recorded initially at acquisition cost, including the expenses imputable to the pur-
chase (any costs directly attributable to the activities necessary to place the assets at the location and in the 
condition required for their operation in the intended manner) and, when applicable, the initial estimate of 
the costs related to the dismantling and removal of the assets and restoration of the respective places of the 
locations which are expected to be incurred.

Land and buildings are recorded subsequently based on the revaluation model. According to this model, the 
tangible fixed asset is presented at its fair value on the revaluation date minus the respective accumulated 
amortisations and impairment losses. The fair value of the land and buildings was determined based on the 
assessment made by specialised and independent valuators (CPU Consultores de Avaliação, Lda.) as at 31 
December 2009 (the previous assessment referred to 1 January 2004) and will be reviewed periodically or 
whenever there are indications that its fair value differs significantly from the book value of the assets.

The resulting exchange rate differences are recorded in the equity under the heading “Surplus revaluation of 
fixed assets, unless there is a decrease recognised previously through profit or loss. Reductions resulting from 
revaluation are recorded directly under the heading Surplus revaluation up to the concurrence of any creditor 
balance of the revaluation surplus of the same asset. Any surplus of the reductions relative to this creditor 
balance is recognised through profit or loss. When the revalued asset is derecognised, the revaluation surplus, 
included in the equity associated to the asset, is not reclassified through profit or loss.
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On an annual basis, the revaluation surplus of tangible and intangible fixed assets is transferred to accumula-
ted net income according to whether it is used, written-off or disposed of. Therefore, the value of the surplus 
to be transferred will be the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued book value of the 
asset and the depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

The rest of the tangible fixed assets are recorded at acquisition or production cost, minus accumulated amor-
tisations and any accumulated impairment losses.

Tangible fixed assets are amortised in accordance with the straight line method, in twelfths, according to 
the useful life estimated for each group of assets, as of the time when the asset is in conditions to be used.

The useful lives and method of amortisation of the different goods are reviewed annually. The effect of any 
alteration to these estimates is recognised in the income statement prospectively.

The amortisation rates used correspond to the following estimated periods of useful life:

Tangible fixed asset headings Until  1988 1989 and 90 1991 to 01 2002 to 10

Buildings and other constructions 8 a 100 10 a 100 10 a 50 10 a 50

Basic equipment 5 a 56 5 a 12 5 a 12 3 a 20

Transport equipment 7 a 25 5 a 12 5 a 12 4 a 12

Administrative equipment 6 a 10 3 a 10 3 a 10 3 a 10

Other tangible fixed assets - - 10 4 a 10

Maintenance and repair costs (subsequent expenditure) which are not capable of generating future econo-
mic benefits are recorded as costs for the period in which they are incurred.

The gain (or loss) arising from the disposal or write-off of a tangible fixed asset is determined as the difference 
between the amount received in the transaction and the book value of the asset, and is recognised through 
profit or loss in the period when the disposal takes place, being recorded in the income statement as: Income 
and gains from non-financial investments or Costs and losses from non-financial investments.

3.15. Investment properties

Investment properties essentially comprise of real estate held to obtain rents or capital appreciation, and are not 
intended for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for administrative purposes or for sale in nor-
mal business activities. Investment properties are recorded initially at acquisition cost, including all the expenses 
imputable to the purchase with the subsequent use of the fair value model.

The fair value of the investment properties is determined based on the assessment made by specialised and 
independent valuators (CPU Consultores de Avaliação, Lda.). Variations in the fair value of the investment 
properties are recognised directly in the income statement for the year under the heading Fair value increa-
ses/reductions.

The costs incurred in relation to investment properties in use, namely maintenance, repair, insurance and pro-
perty taxes, are recognised as a cost for the year to which they refer. Any improvements which are expected 
to create future economic benefits are capitalised under the heading Investment property.
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3.16.Intangibles

Intangible assets are recognised only if it is likely that future economic benefits will arise thereof to the 
company and if the company can, reasonably, control their value. Expenditure related to research activities is 
recorded as costs for the period in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at acquisition or production cost, minus accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses. The amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis during the esti-
mated useful life of the intangible assets. The useful lives and method of amortisation of the different assets 
are reviewed annually. The effect of any alteration to these estimates is recognised in the income statement 
prospectively.

Intangible assets generated internally arising from expenditure on project development are recognised only 
if all the following conditions are complied with and proved to be met:

•	 Existence of technical viability to conclude the intangible asset so that it is available for use or 
sale;

•	 Existence of the intention to conclude the intangible asset and use or sell it;

•	 Existence of capacity to use or sell the intangible asset;

•	 The intangible asset is capable of generating future economic benefits;

•	 Existence of the availability of adequate technical and financial resources to conclude the deve-
lopment of the intangible asset and use or sell it;

•	 Possibility of the reliable measurement of the expenditure associated to the intangible asset 
during their development phase.

The initially recognised value of the intangible asset, generated internally, consists of the sum of the expenditure 
incurred after the date when the conditions described above are met. When these conditions are not met, the 
expenditure incurred during the development phase is recorded as costs for the period.

Intangible assets essentially comprise of development expenditure, where the criteria for the recognition of the 
assets are met, expenses related to industrial property, commercial rights and other rights.

Intangible assets generated internally are recorded at acquisition cost, minus accumulated amortisation and 
impairment losses. The amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis during the estimated useful life 
of the intangible assets. The useful lives and method of amortisation of the intangible assets are reviewed 
annually. The effect of any alteration to these estimates is recognised in the income statement prospectively.

Intangible assets (independently of the way in which they are acquired or generated) with an undefined useful 
life are not subject to amortisation, but rather to impairment tests on an annual basis, or else, whenever there is 
indication that they might be impaired.

3.17. Impairment of tangible and intangible fixed assets excluding goodwill

On each reporting date a review is made of the book values of the company’s tangible and intangible fixed 
assets with a view to determining if there is any indication that they might be impaired. If any indication 
exists, an estimate is made of the recoverable value of the respective assets so as to determine the extent of
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the impairment loss. When it is not possible to determine the recoverable value of an individual asset, an 
estimate is made of the recoverable value of the unit generating the cash flow to which this asset belongs.

The recoverable value of the asset or unit generating the cash flow to which this asset belongs consists of 
the highest value between:

•	 The fair value minus the costs of its sale and

•	 the value of its use.

In the determination of the value of its use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax 
discount rate which reflects market expectations on the time value of money and the specific risks of the 
asset or unit generating the cash flow, relative to which the estimated future cash flow has been adjusted.

Whenever the book value of the asset or unit generating the cash is greater than its recoverable value, an impair-
ment loss is recognised. The impairment loss is recorded immediately in the income statement, under the heading 
Impairment losses, unless this loss compensates a revaluation surplus recorded in the equity. In this last case, the 
loss will be treated as decrease of revaluation.

A reversal of impairment losses, recognised in previous years, is recorded when there is evidence that the 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. A reversal of impairment losses is recogni-
sed immediately in the income statement under the heading Reversal of impairment losses. The reversal of 
the impairment loss is made up to the amount that would have been recognised (net of amortisation) if the 
impairment loss had not been recorded.

3.18. Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lowest value between the acquisition cost and the net realisable value. The net 
realisable value represents the estimated sales price minus all the estimated costs required to conclude the 
inventories and carry out their sale.

Subsidiary raw materials and consumables are stated at acquisition cost, using the average cost as the cos-
ting method.

3.19. Provisions

Provisions are recognised only when the company has a present obligation (legal or implicit) arising from a past 
event. It is likely that in order to settle this obligation there will be an outflow of resources and the amount of the 
obligation can be estimated reasonably.

The recognised amount of the provisions consists of the present value of the best estimate on the reporting 
date of the resources required to settle the obligation. This estimate is determined taking into consideration 
the risks and uncertainties associated to the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed on each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the best estimate of its fair value on 
that date.

Present obligations arising from onerous contracts are recorded and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract exists whenever the company is an integral part of the provisions of an agreement contract, whose 
compliance is associated to costs that cannot be avoided and which exceed the economic benefits derived 
there of.
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A provision is recognised for restructuring when STCP develops a detailed formal restructuring plan, begins 
its implementation and announces its main components to those affected by it. The measurement of the 
restructuring provision considers only expenditure which arises directly from the implementation of the cor-
responding plan, and, consequently, not related to the company’s current activities.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, but are always disclosed whenever the 
possibility of an outflow of resources, involving economic benefits, is not remote. Contingent assets are not 
recognised in the financial statements, but are always disclosed whenever it is likely that there will be a future 
economic inflow of resources.

3.20.  Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet whenever the company becomes a party 
in the corresponding contractual provisions.

Financial assets and liabilities are measured as follows:

•	 at cost or amortised cost; or

•	 at fair value with the fair value alterations recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost when they present the following characteris-
tics simultaneously:

•	 They are considered sight or have a defined maturity;

•	 They are associated to a fixed or determinable return;

•	 They are not a derivative financial instrument or do not incorporate a derivative financial instrument.

These financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost minus accumulated impairment losses 
(in the case of financial assets).

Also classified in the cost or amortised cost category, thus measured at amortised cost minus accumulated im-
pairment losses, are contracts which grant or incur loans that cannot be settled on a liquid basis and that, when 
executed, meet the conditions described above.

Investments in own equity instruments which are not traded publicly and whose fair value cannot be deter-
mined reliably, as well as derivative financial instruments related to these own equity instruments, are also 
classified in the cost or amortised cost category, thus being measured at cost minus accumulated impairment 
losses.

Amortised cost is determined through the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate 
which exactly discounts the estimated future payments or revenue, during the expected life of the financial 
instrument, based on the net book value of the financial asset or liability.

All financial assets and liabilities not classified in the cost or amortised cost category are classified in the 
category of fair value with the fair value alterations recognised in the income statement.

These financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value, with their variations being recorded through 
profit or loss under the headings Fair value reductions and Fair value increases.
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Impairment of financial assets:

•	 Financial assets classified in the cost or amortised cost category are subject to impairment tests 
on each reporting date. These financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is ob-
jective evidence that, as a result of one or more events which have occurred after their initial 
recognition, their estimated future cash flow is affected. For financial assets measured at amorti-
sed cost, the impairment loss to be recognised corresponds to the difference between the book 
value of the asset and the present value of the new estimated future cash flow, discounted at the 
respective original effective interest rate.

•	 For financial assets measured at cost, the impairment loss to be recognised corresponds to the diffe-
rence between the book value of the asset and the best estimate of the present value of the asset.

•	 Impairment losses are recorded through profit and loss, under the heading Impairment losses, for 
the period when they are determined. 

•	 Subsequently, if the value of the impairment loss decreases and this reduction can be related ob-
jectively to an event which has taken place after the recognition of the loss, it should be reflected 
through profit or loss. The reversal should be made up to the amount that would be recognised 
(amortised cost) if the loss had not been recorded initially. The reversal of impairment losses is 
recorded through profit or loss, under the heading Reversals of impairment losses. The reversal 
of impairment losses recorded for investments in own equity instruments (measured at cost) is 
not permitted.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities:

•	 The company derecognises financial assets when all the contractual rights to their cash flows 
have expired, or when the financial assets and all the significant risks and benefits associated to 
their possession are transferred to another entity. Transferred financial assets relative to which 
the company has retained some significant risks and benefits are derecognised, provided that the 
control over them has been assigned.

•	 The company derecognises financial liabilities only when all the corresponding obligation is set-
tled, cancelled or expired.

Compound instruments:

•	 Compound instruments are financial instruments that include a financial liability component and an own 
equity instrument component. These two components are presented in the balance sheet separately, 
according to the substance of the corresponding contractual provisions.

•	 The distinction between a financial liability and an own equity instrument is made according to 
the substance of the associated contractual provisions.

•	 In the initial recognition of a compound instrument, the financial liability component is determined ba-
sed on the market interest rates for similar non-compound instruments. This component is measured at 
amortised cost, based on the effective interest rate method. The own equity component is determined 
by the difference between the value received and the value of the financial liability component, and is 
recorded in the equity. The own equity component is not measured subsequently.
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3.21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

STCP uses derivatives in the management of its financial risks solely as a way to guarantee the hedging of 
these risks, therefore financial derivative instruments are not used for speculative purposes. 

The derivative instruments used by the company refer to interest rate swaps in order to hedge against the risk 
of variation in the interest rate of loans received. The value of the loans, due dates for the interest and ma-
turity of the repayment plans of the loans underlying the interest rate hedging instruments are, in substance, 
identical to the conditions established for the contracted loans.

However, the necessary requirements for the qualification of hedge accounting are not met.

Derivative financial instruments are recorded initially at their fair value on the date when they are contracted. 
On each reporting date they are re-measured at fair value, with the corresponding re-measurement gain or 
loss being recorded immediately through profit and loss, unless these instruments are designated hedging 
instruments.

A derivative financial instrument with positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset under the heading 
Other financial instruments - Derivatives. A derivative instrument with negative fair value is recognised as a 
financial liability, under the heading Other financial instruments - Derivatives.

A derivative financial instrument is presented as non-current if its remaining maturity is greater than 12 
months and its realisation or settlement is not expected within the period of 12 months.

The criteria for the application of the hedge accounting rules are as follows:

•	 Adequate documentation of the hedging operation;

•	 The risk to be hedged against is one of the risks described in NCRF 27 - Financial instruments;

•	 It is expected that the alterations in the fair value or cash flow of the hedged item, attributable 
to the risk to be hedged against is practically compensated by the alterations in the fair value of 
the hedging instrument.

At the beginning of the hedge, the company documents:

•	 the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item;

•	 its risk management objectives and strategy; and

•	 its assessment of the effectiveness of the hedging instrument to compensate variations in the fair 
values and cash flow of the hedged item.

Variations in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments under 
the hedging against the risk of variability in interest rates, exchange rate risk, merchandise price risk, in the 
context of a commitment or a highly likely future transaction, and net investment risk in a foreign operation, 
are recorded in equity, under the heading Other reserves. These gains or losses recorded under Other reserves 
are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, and are stated in 
the line allocated to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the company revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging 
instrument expires, is sold or is exercised, or when the hedging instrument no longer qualifies for hedge  
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accounting. Any amount recorded under Other reserves is only reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged 
position affects profit or loss. When the hedged position consists of a future transaction and it is not expected 
that it will occur, any amount recorded under Other reserves is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

3.22. Exploration and assessment of mineral resources

Not applicable.

3.23. Agriculture

Not applicable.

3.24. Critical value judgements and main sources of uncertainty associated to estimates

The preparation of the attached financial statements included value judgements and estimates, and various 
assumptions were made which affect the reported values of assets and liabilities, as well as the reported 
values of income and costs for the period.

The underlying estimates and assumptions were determined based on the best knowledge existing on the date 
of approval of the financial statements of the events and transactions underway, as well as the experience of 
past and/or current events. However, situations may occur in subsequent periods that, not having been forecast 
on the date of approval of the financial statements, were not considered in these estimates. Any alterations to 
the estimates which occur subsequently to the date of the financial statements will be corrected in a prospective 
manner. For this reason, and in view of the associated degree of uncertainty, the real results of the transactions 
in question may differ from the corresponding estimates.

The main value judgements and estimates made in the preparation of the attached financial statements were 
as follows:

•	 Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets;

•	 Analyses of the impairment of tangible and intangible assets;

•	 Recording of the impairment of asset values, namely inventories and accounts receivable;

•	 Provisions;

•	 Calculation of the liability associated to the pensions funds;

•	 Calculation of the fair value of derivative financial instruments;

•	 Calculation of the fair value of the investment properties, land and buildings included in the 
tangible fixed assets.
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3.25. Subsequent events

Events occurring after the balance sheet date providing additional information about conditions that existed on the 
balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the balance sheet date 
providing additional information about conditions that existed after the balance sheet date (non adjusting events) 
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, when considered materially relevant.

4. Cash flow

For the effect of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent include cash, bank deposits repayable on demand 
and cash investments on the monetary market, net of bank overdrafts and other equivalent short term financing.

The breakdown of cash and cash equivalent as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

5. Accounting policies, alterations to accounting estimates and errors

During the year there were no alterations to the accounting policies or corrections of materially relevant 
errors of previous periods.

In 2010, a review was made of the useful life of public buses, with their useful life having been changed from 
10 years to 13 years. The alteration of the estimate led to a reduction in the amortisation costs of the tangible 
fixed assets for 2010, of the value of 1,040 thousand euros.
 

 2010 2009

Cash 54.204,36 60.069,72

Bank deposits 1.055.320,52 135.497,37

Cash investments 0,00 0,00

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet 1.109.524,88 195.567,09

Bank overdrafts -19.562.407,43 -5.158.533,23

Cash and cash equivalent in the cash flow statement -18.452.882,55 -4.962.966,14
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6. Related Parties

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, STCP presented the following financial holdings:

The remuneration of the company’s senior management staff, during the years ended in 2010 and 2009 is 
described in point 4.6 (Remuneration of the members of the governing bodies) of this annual report.

No decurso dos exercícios findos em 2010 e 2009, foram efectuadas as seguintes transacções com partes 
relacionadas:

Corporate Name Head  Office % Share Holding

Subsidiaries

STCP Serviços – Transportes Urbanos, Consultoria
e Participações, Unipessoal Lda. Porto 100% Activities of tourist operator and passenger land transport,

urban and suburban.

AUTOLOC – Aluguer de Autocarros, ACE Porto 90% Acquisition and leasing of buses.

Associated companies

TIP - Transportes Intermodais do Porto, ACE Porto 33,3% Transport ticket management.

Transpublicidade – Publicidade em Transportes, S.A. Oeiras 20% Operation of all and any advertising related to vehicles and

Other participated companies facilities.

Metro do Porto, S.A. Porto 16,6% Urban and local light rail transport.

OPT - Optimização e Planeamento de Transportes, SA Porto 12%
Development of R&D projects in the area of collective transport,
developing advanced computer solutions for the
management and optimisation of transport systems.

2010

Description of the transactions Subsidiaries Associated 
companies

Senior 
management

  staff

Other related
parties Total

Inventory purchases      

Fixed asset purchases    56.264,00 56.264,00

Services received 418,43 1.916.407,18  83.724,92 2.000.550,53

Interest paid      

Inventory sales      

Fixed asset sales      

Services provided 218.804,06 40.113.332,50  310.023,44 40.642.160,00

Interest received      
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In 2010 and 2009, STCP presented the following balances with related parties:

2010

Balances Subsidiaries Associated 
companies

Senior 
management

  staff

Other related
parties Total

Current accounts receivable 318.221,62 1.492.794,15  70.251,15 1.881.266,92

Non-current accounts receivable      

Adjustments to debts receivable      

Net accounts receivable 318.221,62 1.492.794,15  70.251,15 1.881.266,92

Current balances payable 321.625,68 63.073,00  44.461,35 429.160,03

Non-current balances payable      

Total accounts payable 321.625,68 63.073,00  44.461,35 429.160,03

2009

Balances Subsidiaries Associated 
companies

Senior 
management

  staff

Other related
parties Total

Current accounts receivable 335.377,02 8.562.996,17  43.784,67 8.942.157,86

Non-current accounts receivable      

Adjustments to debts receivable      

Net accounts receivable 335.377,02 8.562.996,17  43.784,67 8.942.157,86

Current balances payable 330.153,10 2.278.815,48  78.862,08 2.687.830,66

Non-current balances payable      

Total accounts payable 330.153,10 2.278.815,48  78.862,08 2.687.830,66

2009

Description of the transactions Subsidiaries Associated 
companies

Senior 
management

  staff

Other related
parties Total

Inventory purchases      

Fixed asset purchases 7.291,85   140.608,30 147.900,15

Services received  1.946.758,35  82.651,33 2.029.409,68

Interest paid      

Inventory sales      

Fixed asset sales      

Services provided 288.438,50 40.074.847,03  356.207,11 40.719.492,64

Interest received      
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As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, STCP presented the following loans received from and granted to rela-
ted parties:

7. Intangible Assets

During the years ended on 31 December 2010 and 2009, the movement which occurred in the book value of the 
intangible assets, as well as in the respective accumulated amortisations and impairment losses, was as follows:

Intangible assets   Development
projects

Computer
 programs

Industrial
 property

 Other
  intangible

assets

Intangible
assets

 in progress
Total

Net value as at 01.01.2010 6.492,95 150.430,42 0,00  549.478,30 706.401,67

Gross assets       

Balance as at 01.01.2010 88.749,10 4.328.891,75 96.639,49  549.478,30 5.063.758,64

Movements in 2010

Additions  17.555,38   43.000,00 60.555,38

Write-offs/sales       

Adjustments and transfers  7.616,00   -7.616,00  

Balance as at 31.12.2010 88.749,10 4.354.063,13 96.639,49  584.862,30 5.124.314,02

Accumulated amortisation       

Balance as at 01.01.2010 -82.256,15 -4.178.461,33 -96.639,49   -4.357.356,97

Movements in 2010       

Amortisation costs -4.583,28 -96.236,57    -100.819,85

Balance as at 31.12.2010 -86.839,43 -4.274.697,90 -96.639,49   -4.458.176,82

Net value as at 31.12.2010 1.909,67 79.365,23 0,00  584.862,30 666.137,20

2010

Balances Subsidiaries Associated 
companies

Senior 
management

  staff

Other related
parties Total

Total loans received      

Loans granted with guarantees

Loans granted without guarantees 59.461,61    59.461,61

Total loans granted 59.461,61    59.461,61

2009

Balances Subsidiaries Associated 
companies

Senior 
management

  staff

Other related
parties Total

Total loans received      

Total loans granted      
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The company does not capitalise any research costs and development costs are capitalised only when they 
meet the criteria for recognition defined in the NCRF.

Following the analysis of the intangible assets it was decided that there are no assets with an undefined 
useful life. The amortisation is calculated in accordance with the following estimated useful lives:

Intangible fixed asset headings Years of useful life

Development projects 3

Computer programmes 2 a 5

Industrial property 3

Intangible assets   Development
projects

Computer
 programs

Industrial
 property

 Other
  intangible

assets

Intangible
assets

 in progress
Total

Net value as at 01.01.2009 POC 16.409,33  2.469,65   18.878,98

Net value as at 01.01.2009 SNC 16.409,33 2.469,65    18.878,98

Gross assets       

Balance as at 01.01.2009 POC 88.749,10  1.098.489,91 752.112,68  1.939.351,69

SNC Adjustments  951.970,63 -951.970,63 -752.112,68  -752.112,68

Adjustments to pure historical cost       

Derecognition of assets    -752.112,68  -752.112,68

Reclassifications/transfers  951.970,63 -951.970,63    

Balance as at 01.01.2009 SNC 88.749,10 951.970,63 146.519,28   1.187.239,01

Movements in 2009       

Additions  61.809,45   391.923,30 453.732,75

Write-offs/sales  -498,80 -49.879,79   -50.378,59

Adjustments and transfers  3.315.610,47   157.555,00 3.473.165,47

Balance as at 31.12.2009 SNC 88.749,10 4.328.891,75 96.639,49  549.478,30 5.063.758,64

Accumulated amortisation       

Balance as at 01.01.2009 POC -72.339,77  -1.096.020,26 -752.112,68  -1.920.472,71

SNC Adjustments  -949.500,98 949.500,98 752.112,68  752.112,68

Derecognition of assets    752.112,68  752.112,68

Reclassifications/transfers  -949.500,98 949.500,98    

Balance as at 01.01.2009 SNC -72.339,77 -949.500,98 -146.519,28   -1.168.360,03

Movements in 2009       

Amortisation costs -9.916,38 -107.290,80    -117.207,18

Write-offs/sales  498,80 49.879,79   50.378,59

Adjustments and transfers  -3.122.168,35    -3.122.168,35

Balance as at 31.12.2009 SNC -82.256,15 -4.178.461,33 -96.639,49   -4.357.356,97

Net value as at 31.12.2009 SNC 6.492,95 150.430,42 0,00  549.478,30 706.401,67
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The movement which occurred during 2010 and 2009 in tangible assets in progress was as follows:

 Balance 
01.01.2010 Acquisitions IHW(*) Transfers  Write -offs/

Disposals
Balance 

31.12.2010

Computer programmes 549.478,30 43.000,00  -7.616,00  584.862,30

 549.478,30 43.000,00  -7.616,00  584.862,30

 Balance 
01.01.2009 Acquisitions IHW(*) Transfers  Write -offs/

Disposals
Balance 

31.12.2009

Computer programmes  391.923,30  157.555,00  549.478,30

  391.923,30  157.555,00  549.478,30

(*) IHW - In-house works					  

8. Tangible fixed assets

During the years ended on 31 December 2010 and 2009, the movement which occurred in the book value 
of the tangible fixed assets, as well as in the respective accumulated amortisations and impairment losses, 
was as follows:

Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets
 Land

& natural
 resources

Buildings
  & other

constructions

Basic
   equipment

Transport
equipment

Administrative
equipment

Other
tangible

  fixed assets

 Tangible
assets

in progress

Advances on 
account

 tangible fixed  
assets

Total tangible

Net value as at 01.01.2010 36.959.451,90 20.861.329,44 28.879.948,61 337.839,65 427.117,91 1.112.975,39 1.914.906,16 24.726,00 90.518.295,06

Gross assets

Balance as at 01.01.2010 39.081.005,75 28.634.093,39 78.053.379,91 1.976.438,48 4.335.733,63 1.332.854,01 1.914.906,16 24.726,00 155.353.137,33
Movements in 2010
Additions 18.598,34 11.715.794,60 93.768,36 83.199,84 283.576,82 12.194.937,96
Write-offs/sales -12.323,25 -933.246,93 -59.711,51 -41.206,71 -1.046.488,40
Adjustments and transfers 328.233,21 -358.533,21 -30.300,00
Balance as at 31.12.2010 39.081.005,75 28.968.601,69 88.835.927,58 2.010.495,33 4.377.726,76 1.332.854,01 1.839.949,77 24.726,00 166.471.286,89

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01.01.2010 0,00 -7.589.524,54 -49.173.431,30 -1.638.598,83 -3.908.615,72 -219.878,62 0,00 0,00 -62.530.049,01
Movements in 2010
Depreciation and amortisation costs -1.244.638,91 -4.878.251,97 -139.856,76 -156.378,97 -7.955,01 -6.427.081,62
Write-offs/sales 12.323,25 932.624,96 59.711,51 40.588,70 1.045.248,42
Adjustments and transfers 0,00
Balance as at 31.12.2010 0,00 -8.821.840,20 -53.119.058,31 -1.718.744,08 -4.024.405,99 -227.833,63 0,00 0,00 -67.911.882,21
Accumulated impairment losses

Balance as at 01.01.2010 -2.121.553,85 -183.239,41 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 -2.304.793,26
Balance as at 31.12.2010 -2.121.553,85 -183.239,41 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 -2.304.793,26

Net value as at 31.12.2010 36.959.451,90 19.963.522,08 35.716.869,27 291.751,25 353.320,77 1.105.020,38 1.839.949,77 24.726,00 96.254.611,42
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Tangible Fixed Assets
 Land

& natural
 resources

Buildings
  & other

constructions

Basic
   equipment

Transport
equipment

 Administrative
equipment

Other
tangible

  fixed assets

Tangible
assets

in progress

Advances
  on account
 of tangible

  assets

 Total
tangible fixed

 assets

Net value as at 01.01.2009 POC 15.473.636,89 20.505.664,41 34.795.773,02 315.623,56 744.915,42 1.140.126,91 1.965.531,64 39.126,00 74.980.397,85
Net value as at 01.01.2009 SNC 41.704.185,06 16.952.467,06 34.794.227,98 315.623,56 744.915,42 1.140.126,91 1.965.531,64 39.126,00 97.656.203,63

Gross assets

Balance as at 01.01.2009 POC 15.473.636,89 40.144.543,13 83.991.150,19 2.065.631,56 8.593.783,31 1.648.975,62 1.965.531,64 39.126,00 153.922.378,34
SNC Adjustments 26.385.714,72 -16.886.389,31 -5.472.203,66 -104.550,50 -580.837,33 -250.419,01 0,00 0,00 3.091.314,91
- Adjustments to pure historical cost -3.587.273,47 -22.868.500,59 -5.472.203,66 -104.550,50 -580.837,33 -250.419,01 -32.863.784,56
- Derecognition of assets -277.075,96 -277.075,96
- Revaluation 29.972.988,19 6.259.187,24 36.232.175,43
Balance as at 01.01.2009 SNC 41.859.351,61 23.258.153,82 78.518.946,53 1.961.081,06 8.012.945,98 1.398.556,61 1.965.531,64 39.126,00 157.013.693,25
Movements in 2009
Revaluation 3.112.741,12 8.148.327,04 11.261.068,16
Additions 165.938,11 247.359,05 116.253,14 113.758,70 408.517,74 1.051.826,74
Write-offs/sales -1.041.455,83 -1.265.660,17 -115.295,72 -483.640,58 -65.702,60 -8.378,61 -2.980.133,51
Adjustments and transfers -5.891.086,98 -1.896.869,75 552.734,50 14.400,00 -3.307.330,47 -450.764,61 -14.400,00 -10.993.317,31
Balance as at 31.12.2009 SNC 39.081.005,75 28.634.093,39 78.053.379,91 1.976.438,48 4.335.733,63 1.332.854,01 1.914.906,16 24.726,00 155.353.137,33

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01.01.2009 POC 0,00 -19.638.878,72 -49.195.377,17 -1.750.008,00 -7.848.867,89 -508.848,71 0,00 0,00 -78.941.980,49
SNC Adjustments 0,00 13.795.751,18 5.470.658,62 104.550,50 580.837,33 250.419,01 0,00 0,00 20.202.216,64
- Adjustments to pure historical cost 0,00 11.920.468,23 5.470.658,62 104.550,50 580.837,33 250.419,01 0,00 0,00 18.326.933,69
- Derecognition of assets 0,00 277.075,96 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 277.075,96
- Revaluation 0,00 1.598.206,99 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 1.598.206,99
Balance as at 01.01.2009 SNC -5.843.127,54 -43.724.718,55 -1.645.457,50 -7.268.030,56 -258.429,70 0,00 0,00 -58.739.763,85
Movements in 2009
Depreciation and amortisation costs -912.142,69 -6.636.513,14 -108.437,05 -241.959,87 -10.163,34 0,00 0,00 -7.909.216,09
Revaluation 0,00 -2.320.740,49 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 -2.320.740,49
Write-offs/sales 0,00 1.040.229,51 1.264.471,79 115.295,72 480.190,41 48.714,42 0,00 0,00 2.948.901,85
Adjustments and transfers 0,00 446.256,67 -76.671,40 0,00 3.121.184,30 0,00 0,00 0,00 3.490.769,57
Balance as at 31.12.2009 SNC 0,00 -7.589.524,54 -49.173.431,30 -1.638.598,83 -3.908.615,72 -219.878,62 0,00 0,00 -62.530.049,01

Accumulated impairment losses

Balance as at 01.01.2009 POC 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
SNC Adjustments -155.166,55 -462.559,22 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 -617.725,77
- Asset impairment -155.166,55 -462.559,22 -617.725,77
Balance as at 01.01.2009 SNC -155.166,55 -462.559,22 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 -617.725,77
Movements in 2009
Increases -2.121.553,85 -2.121.553,85
Reversals 124.646,78 186.996,42 311.643,20
Write-offs/sales 1.226,32 1.226,32
Adjustments and transfers 30.519,77 91.097,07 121.616,84
Balance as at 31.12.2009 SNC -2.121.553,85 -183.239,41 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 -2.304.793,26

Net value as at 31.12.2009 SNC 36.959.451,90 20.861.329,44 28.879.948,61 337.839,65 427.117,91 1.112.975,39 1.914.906,16 24.726,00 90.518.295,06

The additions column of 2009 includes 135,115,77 euros of in-house works.

On the date of transition to the new accounting standards (01.01.2009) the company adopted the pure his-
torical cost and annulled all the revaluation carried out under legal diplomas. On the other hand, it adopted 
the fair value model for the category of land and buildings as the subsequent measurement criterion.

The fair value of buildings and land as at 01.01.2009 was determined based on the fair value in use by the 
company, under its IAS/IFRS accounting reporting, and which results from an assessment made by an accre-
dited and independent entity (CPU Consultores de Avaliação, Lda.).

The derecognition of tangible fixed assets was made where the criteria for recognition were no longer met, 
with the impact being null because their net value was zero.

The impact of these transition adjustments is presented in the table above.

As at 31 December 2009, the Board of Directors decided to change the use of certain buildings and land, 
which were not being used by the company, for capital appreciation or to obtain rents, and transferred them 
to the heading Investment properties. Hence, the heading Adjustments and transfers of gross assets, in the 
category of Land and Buildings and other constructions, and the accumulated depreciation in the category 
of Buildings and other constructions, and respective accumulated impairment losses essentially reflect the 
reclassification of these assets.
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As at 31 December 2009, the company requested a new independent assessment (CPU Consultores de 
Avaliação, Lda.) of its land and buildings (all located in Greater Porto) classified as tangible fixed assets.

The assumptions for the assessment used in the determination of the fair value were as follows:

•	 In order to obtain the value of each property the following main factors were taken into conside-
ration: location, access, existing size, characteristics and the current state of conservation of the 
construction, as well as the visit made to the exterior area of each place;

•	 Current market values relative to properties with similar potential use and locations were also 
used as a reference;

•	 The values used do not consider any incidence of personal (IRS) or corporate income tax (IRC).

It is also important to emphasise that this assessment process did not take into account any constraints of 
commercial nature or economic obsolescence of the business or activities to be exercised at the premises, 
with the property being assessed just as it was found, and with its current uses.

The valuation of the infrastructures allocated to each property - flooring, water supply and distribution ne-
tworks, wastewater and rainwater drainage networks, electricity distribution grids, etc. – were considered 
and included in the overall valuation of each property.

For properties currently with operational functions - considered as tangible fixed assets - their value under 
continued use was determined.

For the property which refers to the floor of offices at Torre das Antas under operational use by the company 
– the market and income comparison criteria were used, in a perspective of continued use.

In certain circumstances, namely due to the specialised nature of the property and if it is rarely sold except as 
an integral part of a “continued business”, its fair value can be attributed, using a depreciated replacement 
cost approach.

For the rest of the properties of the tangible fixed assets, the criteria of depreciated construction costs were 
used.

As a result of the revaluation carried out, the total fair value of the land and buildings and other constructions 
showed, as at 31 December 2009, a positive variation of the net value of 7,130,417.02 euros.

If the land, natural resources, buildings and other constructions had been recognised in accordance with the 
cost model, the book value would have been, respectively:

Heading 2010 2009

Land and natural resources 4.637.280,62 4.637.280,62

Buildings and other constructions 7.275.836,70 7.689.376,55

 11.913.117,32 12.326.657,17

No disclosures were made of restrictions on the ownership of assets, or of fixed assets given to guarantee 
liabilities, since there are no situations falling under this context. Therefore, sub-paragraph a) of paragraph 
73 of the NCRF is not applicable.
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During 2010, no contractual commitments were made for the acquisition of tangible fixed assets, therefo-
re, there are no disclosures to be made under sub-paragraph c) of paragraph 73 of the NCRF 7.

The movement which occurred during 2010 and 2009 in the value of tangible assets in progress was as 
follows:

(*) IHW - In-house works					   

The movements in advances for tangible fixed assets in 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

(*) IHW - In-house works

 Balance
01.01.2010 Acquisitions IHW(*) Transfers Write-offs/

Disposals
Balance 

31.12.2010

Buildings and other constructions 544.767,41 201.499,00  -358.533,21  387.733,20

Basic equipment 1.370.138,75 48.783,37 33.294,45   1.452.216,57

Administrative equipment       

Other tangible fixed assets       

 1.914.906,16 250.282,37 33.294,45 -358.533,21  1.839.949,77

 Balance
01.01.2009 Acquisitions IHW(*) Transfers Write-offs/

Disposals
Balance 

31.12.2009

Buildings and other constructions 210.751,23 334.408,21  -392,03  544.767,41

Basic equipment 1.587.385,41 72.913,50 1.196,03 -282.977,58 -8.378,61 1.370.138,75

Administrative equipment 167.395,00   -167.395,00   

Other tangible fixed assets      

 1.965.531,64 407.321,71 1.196,03 -450.764,61 -8.378,61 1.914.906,16

 Balance
01.01.2010 Acquisitions IHW(*) Transfers Write-offs/

Disposals
Balance 

31.12.2010

Land and natural resources 24.726,00     24.726,00

Buildings and other constructions       

Transport Equipment       

 24.726,00     24.726,00

 Balance
01.01.2009 Acquisitions IHW(*) Transfers Write-offs/

Disposals
Balance 

31.12.2009

Land and natural resources 24.726,00     24.726,00

Buildings and other constructions       

Transport Equipment 14.400,00   -14.400,00   

 39.126,00   -14.400,00  24.726,00
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9. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operating units

The company has no assets under these conditions.

10. Leases

10.1. Financial leases - lessees

During 2010 and 2009, the company paid financial lease instalments to the value of 3,150,562.56 euros (inclu-
des 503,731.70 euros of interest) and 3,029,417.32 euros (includes 952,459.67 euros of interest), respectively.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the company had liabilities, as a lessee, relative to the instalments of financial 
leasing contracts, to the value of 26,643,854.22 euros and 23,122,458.60 euros, respectively (which includes VAT 
when it is not deductible), due during the following years, as shown in the table below:

2010 2009

Years Discounted value
  min. payments Interest Total Discounted value

    min. payments Interest Total

2010   1.928.547,68 394.334,33 2.322.882,01

2011 3.030.933,17 485.954,73 3.516.887,90 1.966.139,10 356.742,87 2.322.881,97

2012 3.094.231,80 422.656,13 3.516.887,93 2.004.469,66 318.412,31 2.322.881,97

2013 3.122.323,36 358.151,61 3.480.474,97 2.007.101,08 279.437,92 2.286.539,00

2014 3.182.225,95 292.786,01 3.475.011,96 2.040.931,40 240.144,59 2.281.075,99

2015 3.106.288,22 226.090,19 3.332.378,41 2.119.786,90 200.114,50 2.319.901,40

Após 2015 8.874.458,02 447.755,03 9.322.213,05 8.849.213,18 417.083,08 9.266.296,26

Total 24.410.460,52 2.233.393,70 26.643.854,22 20.916.189,00 2.206.269,60 23.122.458,60

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the net book value for each category of asset under financial leasing 
was as follows:

Description

2010 2009

Acquisition 
value

Accumulated
 amortisation Net value Acquisition 

value
Accumulated
 amortisation Net value

Land and natural resources 2.460.351,85  2.460.351,85 2.460.351,85  2.460.351,85

Basic equipment 28.555.850,78 6.678.033,53 21.877.817,25 22.858.150,78 4.776.125,57 18.082.025,21

Total 31.016.202,63 6.678.033,53 24.338.169,10 25.318.502,63 4.776.125,57 20.542.377,06

10.2 Operational leasing

During 2010 and 2009, costs of 5,988,720.83 euros and 6,166,078.52 euros, respectively, were recognised 
relative to operational leasing contract instalments. 
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As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the instalments of operating lease contracts showed the following
due dates:

Years 2010 2009

2010  5.765.346,81

2011 5.663.916,05 5.763.754,61

2012 5.663.916,05 5.763.754,57

2013 4.658.758,24 4.722.136,07

2014 3.089.165,59 3.113.648,87

2015 1.612.518,00 1.626.851,89

Total 20.688.273,93 26.755.492,82

11. Costs of loans received

The financial costs related to loans received are generally recognised as costs in accordance with the accrual ac-
counting principle, using their effective interest rate for the effect.

The interest and similar costs paid in 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

2010 2009

Interest paid 7.486.445,32 8.326.437,55

Interest - credit and financial institutions 920.400,04 2.515.335,70

Bank loans 343.533,16 1.250.658,04

Bank overdrafts 166.420,66 484.364,22

Leases 410.446,22 780.313,44

Financing interest for securities - bonds 5.379.332,44 4.178.190,43

Interest - other financing 459.382,02 1.347.027,37

Interest - other financial instruments 727.330,82 285.884,05

Other financing costs and loss - relative to loans received 831.943,52 888.619,49

Costs related to discounts on financial issues 47.087,06 35.927,44

Endorsement fee 556.920,66 436.877,77

Commissions and other costs 79.429,13 33.339,42

Stamp duty on use of capital 148.506,67 382.474,86

Actual interest and similar costs paid 8.318.388,84 9.215.057,04

Fair value reductions - Financial instruments 20.064.753,04 1.221.444,07

Interest and similar costs paid in the income statement 28.383.141,88 10.436.501,11
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The company did not capitalise the cost of assets of financial costs because it does not have any which qualify as 
such.

12. Investment properties

As referred to in note 8, the Board of Directors decided, as at 31 December 2009, to alter the purpose of some 
properties, defining their purpose as the obtaining of rents and capital appreciation. Therefore, on this date, a group 
of nine properties were transferred from the tangible fixed assets.

The fair value model was also adopted in the subsequent valuation of the buildings and land classified as invest-
ment properties, using the measurement followed for land and buildings classified as tangible fixed assets.

As at 31 December 2009, the company revalued the investment properties, with the fair value of the properties 
having been determined through an assessment made by a specialised and independent entity of recognised pro-
fessional qualification (CPU Consultores de Avaliação, Lda.).

As at 31 December 2010, there was no new request for the assessment of the properties because the Board of 
Directors considered that the preparation of a new assessment was unnecessary. The underlying reasoning of this 
attitude was linked to the fact that an assessment of the fair value had been carried out at the end of 2009 and, 
since then, there had been no alterations in the market prices or urban plans where the properties are situated. On 
the other hand, the Board of Directors considered that there are no provisions in the Accounting Standardisation 
System imposing the annual undertaking of assessments to determine the fair value of investment properties.

During the years ended in 2010 and 2009, the movement which occurred in the book value of the investment 
property was as follows:

 The interest and similar income received in 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

2010 2009

Interest received 2,91 523.584,16

From deposits 2,91 220.359,16

From other financial instruments 0,00 303.225,00

Other financing income and gains 1,11 5,51

Actual interest and similar income received 4,02 523.589,67

Fair value increases - Financial instruments 0,00 2.194.109,67

Interest and similar income received in the income statement 4,02 2.717.699,34



Accounts for the  Financial Year and Appendices 2010 139

Investment Property

Investment
 properties

Land and natural resources Buildings & other constructions

Total

Rented
 For

appreciation
Total Rented

 For
appreciation

Total

Net value as at 01.01.2010 314.040,00 2.955.700,00 3.269.740,00 732.760,00 531.800,00 1.264.560,00 4.534.300,00

Gross value

Balance as at 01.01.2010 314.040,00 2.955.700,00 3.269.740,00 1.046.000,33 653.728,89 1.699.729,22 4.969.469,22

Balance as at 31.12.2010 314.040,00 2.955.700,00 3.269.740,00 1.046.000,33 653.728,89 1.699.729,22 4.969.469,22

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 01.01.2010 0,00 0,00 0,00 -261.445,45 -121.928,89 -383.374,34 -383.374,34

Balance as at 31.12.2010 0,00 0,00 0,00 -261.445,45 -121.928,89 -383.374,34 -383.374,34

Accumulated impairment losses

Balance as at 01.01.2010 0,00 0,00 0,00 -51.794,88 0,00 -51.794,88 -51.794,88

Balance as 31.12.2010 0,00 0,00 0,00 -51.794,88 0,00 -51.794,88 -51.794,88

Net value as at 31.12.2010 314.040,00 2.955.700,00 3.269.740,00 732.760,00 531.800,00 1.264.560,00 4.534.300,00

Investment 
properties

Land and natural resources Buildings & other constructions

Total

Rented
 For

appreciation
Total Rented

 For
appreciation

Total

Net value as at 01.01.2009 POC
Net value as at 01.01.2009 SNC

Gross value

Balance as at 01.01.09 POC

Movements in 2009

Adjustments and transfers 307.489,77 5.583.597,21 5.891.086,98 1.042.840,33 581.668,02 1.624.508,35 7.515.595,33

Variation in fair value 6.550,23 -2.627.897,21 -2.621.346,98 3.160,00 72.060,87 75.220,87 -2.546.126,11

  - Gains 6.550,23 99.739,00 106.289,23 3.160,00 72.060,87 75.220,87 181.510,10

  - Losses -2.727.636,21 -2.727.636,21 0,00 -2.727.636,21

Balance as at 31.12.09 SNC 314.040,00 2.955.700,00 3.269.740,00 1.046.000,33 653.728,89 1.699.729,22 4.969.469,22

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 01.01.09 POC

Movements in 2009

Adjustments and transfers 0,00 -258.917,46 -109.683,76 -368.601,22 -368.601,22

Variation in fair value 0,00 0,00 0,00 -2.527,99 -12.245,13 -14.773,12 -14.773,12

  - Gains 0,00 -2.527,99 -12.245,13 -14.773,12 -14.773,12

Balance as at 31.12.09 SNC 0,00 0,00 0,00 -261.445,45 -121.928,89 -383.374,34 -383.374,34

Accumulated impairment losses

Balance as at 01.01.09 POC

Movements in 2009

Adjustments and transfers -30.519,77 -30.519,77 -91.097,07 -91.097,07 -121.616,84

Reversals of impairment losses 30.519,77 30.519,77 39.302,19 39.302,19 69.821,96

Balance as at 31.12.09 SNC 0,00 0,00 0,00 -51.794,88 0,00 -51.794,88 -51.794,88

Net value as at 31.12.2009 SNC 314.040,00 2.955.700,00 3.269.740,00 732.760,00 531.800,00 1.264.560,00 4.534.300,00
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As at 31 December 2009, the valuator entity noted that the assessment work carried out consisted of the deter-
mination of the value of the properties, for accounting effects, in observance of the requirements of the NCRF and 
terms of reference indicated by STCP. The investment properties were assessed in a perspective of alternative use. 
Their market value was determined, they were considered free and available (even for rented properties) and, in 
void properties, this value corresponds to its value under an alternative use.

Under the principle of the best alternative use, the market value of the property is based on an analysis of the rate 
of return of the development project consistent with its best possible use or, when existent, in accordance with any 
other development projects. The best alternative use is defined as the probable and reasonable use that, on the 
assessment date, generates the highest current value.

Therefore, in order to assess the value of the properties use was made of the market and income comparison crite-
ria, in some cases through the direct capitalisation method and, in other cases, the residual value method.

The fair value is defined in NCRF 11, paragraph 38, as “the price at which the property may be exchanged between 
knowledgeable and willing parties, in a transaction where there is no relationship between the parties”.

The fair value is generally the market value determined by qualified expert valuators.

In this way the requirements established in NCRF 11 for the determination of the market value of properties were 
fulfilled. The gains and losses arising from the updating of the fair value of the investment properties, as at 31 
December 2009, to the value of -236,558.94 euros and 2,727,636.21 euros, respectively, were reflected in the 
income statement under the heading Fair value increases/reductions:

 2010 2009

Losses due to the decreased fair value

     of investment properties 2.727.636,21

Gains due to the increased fair value

     of investment properties -236.558,94

 2.491.077,27

The company assumed no contractual obligation relative to the construction, development, repair or maintenance 
of investment properties.

During 2010, the following income and costs related to investment properties were recognised through profit 
or loss (in 2009 these properties were classified as tangible fixed assets):

Investment properties Rented For appreciation Total

Income

Income from rents 252.644,91  252.644,91

Costs    

Direct costs -8.313,89 -12.328,96 -20.642,85

Other losses    

Net total 244.331,02 -12.328,96 232.002,06
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13. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

According to STCP, a company of exclusively public capital, whose main objective is not profit, but rather the pro-
vision of a social service of transport without any commercial justification, it should be financially compensated for 
this significant share of service it is forced to ensure, and it is hoped that this position will be clarified under the 
public service contracting process that is currently underway.

In this context, we believe that the historic situation of creation of successive losses does not reflect an indication 
of impairment, but rather a deficit in the State’s compliance with the duty to fund the social activities it imposes. 
Hence, STCP presented contracting proposals at the end of 2009 and beginning of 2010, to the technical line 
ministries - the Secretariat of State for Transport and Secretariat of State for the Treasury and Finance - for the 
contracting of the Duties of Public Service and adoption of measures to re-balance the company’s economic and 
financial position. This will be the path that will enable STCP to re-balance its operations and resolve the historic 
structural problem of a situation of negative equity.

When any asset shows indications of impairment, whether due to obsolescence or material, an analysis of impair-
ment is made and any losses arising thereof are recognised.

Furthermore, we would like to emphasise that during 2009 we obtained market assessments, carried out by 
independent valuators, for the category of Land and buildings classified as tangible fixed assets and invest-
ment properties, whereby in some cases the corresponding impairment losses were identified and recorded.

The movement which occurred during 2010 and 2009 in the heading Accumulated impairment of tangible fixed 
assets are detailed in Note 8.

The impairment losses and respective reversals, recorded in 2010 and 2009, are as follows:

Tangible fixed assets

 2010 2009

Income statement

Impairment losses 1.809.910,65

  - Increases  2.121.553,85

  - Reversals  -311.643,20

Equity - Revaluation surplus

  - Revaluation surplus -236.558,94

 1.809.910,65

14. Financial holdings valued through the equity method

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the financial holdings in subsidiaries and associated companies, all valued 
through the equity method, were as follows:
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2010

Assets Liabilities Equity Income
Net

 income
% 

Stake

Subsidiaries

STCP Serviços 160.482,64 567.988,55 -407.505,91 475.899,29 -329.974,04 100,00%
AUTOLOC 324.021,97 2.000,00 322.021,97 -6.150,00 90,00%

Associated companies

TIP - Transportes Intermodais do Porto, ACE 10.873.171,00 12.639.429,00 -1.766.257,00 4.893.732,00 278.608,00 33,33%
Transpublicidade – Publicidade em Transportes, S.A. 1.270.907,22 548.767,12 722.140,10 1.158.540,76 -63.478,47 20,00%

2009

Assets Liabilities Equity Income
Net

 income
% 

Stake

Subsidiaries

STCP Serviços 961.081,19 1.038.613,06 -77.531,87 507.206,20 -465.375,92 100,00%
AUTOLOC 331.621,97 3.450,00 328.171,97 -8.231,75 90,00%

Associated companies

TIP - Transportes Intermodais do Porto, ACE 24.313.258,00 25.677.091,00 -1.363.833,00 4.724.191,00 224.309,00 33,33%
Transpublicidade – Publicidade em Transportes, S.A. 1.651.399,53 865.780,96 785.618,57 1.714.398,70 129.924,70 20,00%

The financial statements of the associates and subsidiaries were used, as at 31 December of each year, albeit being 
provisional data.

Since the proportion of the company in the negative net income of STCP Serviços and TIP exceeded the book 
value of the corresponding investment, the application of the equity method was interrupted in previous years. 
Consequently, during 2010 and 2009, the corresponding portion in the losses and gains of these two participated 
companies were not recognised by the company.

During 2010 and 2009, the financial shareholdings in subsidiaries and associates in the financial statements of 
STCP recorded the following movements:

 2010 2009

Financial holdings   

Opening balance 453.785,70 433.902,11

SNC transition adjustments  1.307,22

Adjustments - Equity method -19.537,91 18.576,37

Closing balance 434.247,79 453.785,70

Impairment losses   

Net assets 434.247,79 453.785,70

15. Financial holdings valued through other methods

The financial holdings in other companies are recorded at cost because they are not listed on an active market, and 
therefore their fair value cannot be measured reliably.
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There were no movements in these shareholdings, as shown in the table below, and the book value refers only to 
the stake in OPT, since the stake in Metro do Porto is null (due to it having been valued through the equity method 
up to 2007 - the stake up to this date was 25% - and showing negative equity):

 2010 2009

 Fair value At cost Fair value At cost

Financial holdings:     

Opening balance  25.000,00  25.000,00

Closing balance  25.000,00  25.000,00

Impairment losses:     

Net assets     

16. Business combinations

Not applicable.

17. Exploration and assessment of mineral resources

Not applicable.

18. Agriculture

Not applicable.

19. Inventories

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the heading Inventories shows the following details:

2010 2009

Gross value  Impairment
losses

Net
value Gross value  Impairment

losses Net value

Raw materials and consumables 820.466,02 -123.011,08 697.454,94 792.458,22 -110.648,58 681.809,64

Products and work in progress 1.513,60  1.513,60 1.706,69  1.706,69

 821.979,62 -123.011,08 698.968,54 794.164,91 -110.648,58 683.516,33
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The cost of raw materials and consumables, in 2010 and 2009, was as follows:

 2010 2009

Opening inventory 792.458,22 1.016.195,45

Purchases 1.450.477,89 1.349.181,21

Adjustments -1.399,05 2.184,96

Closing inventory 820.466,02 792.458,22

Cost of materials consumed -1.421.071,04 -1.575.103,40

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the variation of the Products and work in progress was as follows:

 2010 2009

Opening balance 1.706,69 5.288,93

Adjustments 0,00 0,00

Closing balance 1.513,60 1.706,69

Variation in production inventories -193,09 -3.582,24

The evolution of the accumulated impairment losses of inventories, during the years ended in 2010 and 
2009, is detailed as follows:

Ano de 2010 Opening balance Increases Reversals Closing balance

Raw materials and consumables 110.648,58 12.362,50 0,00 123.011,08

Products and work in progress     

Ano de 2009 Opening balance Increases Reversals Closing balance

Raw materials and consumables 282.567,74 0,00 171.919,16 110.648,58

Products and work in progress

The increases and reversals of inventory impairment losses, for 2010 and 2009, were recorded under the 
heading Impairment of inventories:

 2010 2009

Increases of impairment losses -12.362,50  

Inventory impairment losses -12.362,50  

Reversals of impairment losses  171.919,16

Reversals of inventory impairment losses  171.919,16

 -12.362,50 171.919,16

20. Construction contracts

Not applicable.
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21. Revenue

The details of the recognised revenue, as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, all received on national territory, 
was as follows:

 2010 2009

Services 49.346.138,90 47.732.156,26

Public passenger transport 49.247.246,57 47.640.268,35

Bus leases 62.425,00 44.500,00

Tram leases 36.467,33 47.387,91

Supplementary revenue 1.751.311,99 1.992.935,63

Social services  2.547,01

Equipment leases 9.608,00 17.312,00

Studies, projects and technological assistance   

Royalties 995,18  

Performance of social positions in other companies 78.881,25 45.499,93

Other supplementary revenue 1.661.827,56 1.927.576,69

Maintenance services 528.599,44 515.239,12

Advertising 296.390,52 287.446,38

Assignment of personnel 32.706,60 85.375,35

Rent and assignment of facilities 98.561,77 281.801,76

Advisory and other services 164.635,91  

Sale of scrap and other items 52.698,36 27.980,47

Museum sales and services 92.263,60  

Other 395.971,36 729.733,61

Rents and other income from investment properties 252.644,91  

Interest received 2,91 527.846,95

51.350.098,71 50.252.938,84

(*) The public subsidies are defined in Decree-Law 167/2008, of 26 August, which establishes two types of 
subsidies: compensatory indemnities and other types of subsidies.

The compensatory indemnities are characterised by payments made with sums from the State Budget to 
public and private entities, which are intended to compensate operating costs arising from the provision of 
services of general interest (article 3 of the aforementioned Decree-Law). The concept of general interest 
requires, amongst others, duties to provide services of a universal nature and which guarantee accessibility 
in terms of price to citizens in general (article 4).

On the other hand, this same Decree-Law admits other types of subsidies through agreements or contracts 
with the State, but excludes subsidies of a social character granted to natural persons. However, it binds the 
State to the publicising of the sums granted under such agreements or contracts made with the entities.

STCP concluded two agreements with the State that do not involve compensatory indemnities, since they do 
not comply with the definition of compensatory indemnity noted above.

The objective of these agreements is the provision of services at the most economic fare prices to natural 
persons with certain constraints of social order.
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The State reimburses STCP for the reduction of the price of fares practiced under these circumstances.

The agreement for the implementation of the social fare prices in the Andante inter-modal system was signed 
on 29/06/2006 and the agreement for the fare prices 4_18@escola.tp, was signed on 29/01/2009.

Hence, the company recognises these subsidies, under these contracts with influence on fare prices, under 
the heading Revenue of sales and services - public passenger transport.

22. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The following provisions were constituted:

•	 Ongoing lawsuits: according to the costs that the company might be forced to pay for outstanding 
lawsuits at the end of each year in Court and corresponding to the forecast total value.

•	 Accidents at work and occupational diseases: according to the cost that STCP should pay in the 
future for pensions in force as at 31 December 2010. Up to February 1998, the company took 
on the insurance itself relative to these accidents, although there was also a partial insurance for 
major risks. As of 1 March 1998, the company transferred the liability arising from accidents at 
work to an insurer, with an exemption of 30 days. As of 1 March 2009, the liability arising from 
accidents at work no longer includes the exemption.

•	 Other risks and expenses: according to the cost that STCP might be forced to pay due to legal 
claims arising from accidents of its responsibility, outstanding as at 31 December 2010.

The movements which occurred in provisions in 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

2010

Opening balance Increases Reversals Closing balance

Ongoing lawsuits 2.116.807,55  219.021,14 1.897.786,41
Accidents at work and occupational diseases 551.646,69  23.555,08 528.091,61
Other Provisions 1.927.858,51 246.026,49 0,00 2.173.885,00
 4.596.312,75 246.026,49 242.576,22 4.599.763,02

Increases and (reduction)s of provisions   3.450,27  

2009

Opening balance Increases Reversals Closing balance

Ongoing lawsuits 2.159.232,03  42.424,48 2.116.807,55
Accidents at work and occupational diseases 553.360,81  1.714,12 551.646,69
Other Provisions 1.525.430,97 402.427,54  1.927.858,51
 4.238.023,81 402.427,54 44.138,60 4.596.312,75

Increases and (reduction)s of provisions   358.288,94  

The company has two ongoing lawsuits against it whose values are materially relevant, but are not provisioned:
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•	 Lawsuit where the plaintiff is Porto Municipality, filed also against the Portuguese State, where 
part of the real estate assets of the company are claimed.

•	 Lawsuit, filed by ANTROP against the Portuguese State, where the counter-interested parties 
are STCP, SA and CARRIS, applying for the annulment of the decision of Council of Ministers 
number 52/2003, of 27 March 2003, which attributes these operators with the Compensatory 
Indemnities for the year of 2003.

Both cases involve lawsuits where the liability is the responsibility of the Portuguese State, respectively, due 
to its capacity as shareholder and entity responsible for the compensation of the public service.

The fact that STCP has not made any provisioning whatsoever of any values with respect to these lawsuits 
arises from its opinion on the ultimate responsibility for the matters under dispute:

•	 Regarding the lawsuit filed by Porto Municipality against STCP and the Portuguese State on the 
property of the land and other real estate assets included in the company’s equity at the time 
of its transformation into a public limited liability company of exclusively public capital in 1994, 
through the transformation of the then designated Public Collective Transport Service of Porto, 
the company is firmly convinced that the outcome of this lawsuit will be the confirmation that 
the assets in question belong to it and that, should the judgement be otherwise, it is the respon-
sibility of the State and not the company to meet the solution established in the Initial Petition: 
pay an indemnity to the Municipality equivalent to the value to be attributed to any property 
(properties) that the final sentence might decide belongs (belong) to the latter. This lawsuit is still 
under assessment as to whether the Court is competent to judge this case, and it is not expected 
that a definitive outcome will be reached in the next few years.

•	 Regarding the lawsuit filed by ANTROP against the Portuguese State and against STCP and Carris 
on the attribution, in 2003, of the values of the Compensatory Indemnities to these two companies, 
the State already has all the necessary data to confirm that the sum attributed to STCP (the only one 
concerning us) was not even sufficient to cover the extra costs paid in relation to the social service 
imposed on it, and carried out during that year. The total value that might possibly be necessary to 
return to the Portuguese State should be attributed to STCP which could be done, namely, through 
an increase of share capital, in its capacity of single shareholder.

From the above we conclude that these liabilities are contingent because the possibility of the occurrence of any 
future reimbursement is less than 50% and it is also neither possible to estimate the value of the future reimburse-
ments nor when they might occur. Therefore, it is impossible to calculate an estimate of their financial effect.

23. Grants

During the years ended on 31 December 2010 and 2009, the most relevant movements which occurred in 
grants were as follows:
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STCP is subject to an administrative price system, which implies the attribution by the Government of compensa-
tory indemnities, which are not re-payable, in order to partially fund its operations in compliance with its public 
service duties. STCP follows the criteria of recording the compensatory indemnities as operating grants for the 
year when they are attributed.

24. Alterations in exchange rates

During 2010 and 2009 there were no operations in foreign currency.

25. Events after the balance sheet date

There is nothing of relevance to note.

2010

Grants Total value
Value

received
Value

  receivable
Revenue for 
the period

 Accumulated
revenue

Operating grants: 19.930.282,93 18.975.463,21 954.819,72 19.930.282,93  
   State Budget 18.975.463,21 18.975.463,21  18.975.463,21  
   Inst.Gest.Fin.Seg.Soc.- PAII 954.819,72  954.819,72 954.819,72  
Grants related to assets 7.038.055,92 3.754,72  769.270,18 5.913.001,64
 Tangible assets 6.949.986,98 2.842,86  769.122,91 5.833.550,99
 - Buildings and other constructions 330.531,01   6.960,59 142.815,99
 - Basic equipment 6.342.532,44   757.641,39 5.600.721,32
 - Administrative equipment 73.989,91 2.842,86  810,90 70.304,64
 - Other tangible fixed assets 26.201,50   3.710,03 19.709,04
 - Tangible assets in progress 176.732,12     
 Investment properties 15.397,52    7.543,82
 - Buildings 15.397,52    7.543,82
 Intangible assets 72.671,42 911,86  147,27 71.906,83
Computer programmes 72.671,42 911,86 147,27 71.906,83
 26.968.338,85 18.979.217,93 954.819,72 20.699.553,11 5.913.001,64

2009

Grants Total value
Value

received
Value

  receivable
Revenue for 
the period

 Accumulated
revenue

Operating grants: 20.137.879,86 19.156.181,23 981.698,63 20.137.879,86  
   State Budget 19.156.181,23 19.156.181,23  19.156.181,23  
   Inst.Gest.Fin.Seg.Soc.- PAII 981.698,63  981.698,63 981.698,63  
Grants related to assets 7.114.108,88   1.037.759,11 5.223.539,14
 Tangible assets 7.026.951,80 1.036.523,55 5.144.235,76
 - Buildings and other constructions 330.531,01   12.944,19 215.663,08
 - Basic equipment 6.422.340,12   1.016.474,01 4.843.079,93
 - Administrative equipment      
 - Other tangible fixed assets 71.147,05   2.301,68 69.493,74
 - Tangible assets in progress 26.201,50   4.803,67 15.999,01
 Investment properties 176.732,12     
 - Buildings 15.397,52   307,44 7.543,82
 Intangible assets 15.397,52 307,44 7.543,82
Computer programmes 71.759,56   928,12 71.759,56
 Programas de computador 71.759,56 928,12 71.759,56
 27.251.988,74 19.156.181,23 981.698,63 21.175.638,97 5.223.539,14
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26. Income tax

The company is subject to the general regime of Corporate Income Tax (IRC), but in view of its situation of 
deficit it has never paid income tax. The company only pays the costs arising from autonomous taxation and 
has made the special payment on account to which it is bound.

In view of the above, there has been no recognition of any deferred tax assets or liabilities, since there is no 
forecast possibility of deduction of future tax profits from the tax losses reported up to date.

As at 31 December 2010, the reported tax losses reached 133,146,711.37 euros, as presented below.

Years Tax losses

2004 25.984.946,82

2005 19.629.563,03

2006 20.309.815,49

2007 24.714.364,80

2008 22.643.194,03

2009 19.864.827,20

 133.146.711,37

27. Environmental matters

For 2010 and 2009 there is no relevant information to report.

28. Financial instruments

28.1 Identification of financial assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the categories of financial assets and liabilities are detailed as follows:

2010

Financial assets

 Loans
 granted and

Accounts 
receivable

Available for
     sale

Not covered
    IFRS7

Total

Non-current assets  735.000,00  735.000,00
Financial holdings through the cost method 25.000,00 25.000,00
Other financial assets 710.000,00 710.000,00
Current assets 4.891.278,89  3.141.940,41 8.033.219,30
Customers 1.454.204,13 1.454.204,13
Other accounts receivable 2.268.088,27 3.141.940,41 5.410.028,68
Other financial assets 59.461,61 59.461,61
Cash and bank deposits 1.109.524,88 1.109.524,88
 4.891.278,89 735.000,00 3.141.940,41 8.768.219,30
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In 2010 and 2009, STCP only had financial assets and liabilities classified as:

•	 Loans granted and accounts receivable;

•	 Available for sale;

•	 Financial liabilities valued at amortised cost;

•	 Financial liabilities valued at fair value through profit or loss

According to point 29 of IFRS7, sub-paragraph a), when the book value is a reasonable approximation of the 
fair value, as in financial instruments such as commercial accounts receivable or payable in the short term, 
it is not necessary to disclose their fair value. In 2010 and 2009, this situation was the case of the headings 
Customers, Other accounts receivable, Cash and bank deposits and Other accounts payable.

The heading Financial shareholdings at the cost method is measured at cost and refers to a stake in a com-
pany not listed in an active market, therefore its fair value cannot be measured reliably (exception established 

2009

Financial assets

 Loans
 granted and

Accounts 
receivable

Available for
     sale

Not covered
    IFRS7

Total

Non-current assets  735.000,00  735.000,00
Financial holdings through the cost method 25.000,00 25.000,00
Other financial assets 710.000,00 710.000,00
Current assets 10.950.773,00  1.075.140,97 12.025.913,97
Customers 7.801.927,56 7.801.927,56
Other accounts receivable 2.953.278,35 1.075.140,97 4.028.419,32
Other financial assets
Cash and bank deposits 195.567,09 195.567,09
 10.950.773,00 735.000,00 1.075.140,97 12.760.913,97

Financial liabilities
  Financial

 liabilities at
amortised cost

 Financial
    liabilities
  valued at

fair value through
   profit or loss

Not covered
    IFRS7 Total

Non-current liabilities 219.879.074,90 36.215.740,03 21.379.527,35 277.474.342,28
Loans received 219.879.074,90 21.379.527,35 241.258.602,25
Other financial liabilities 36.215.740,03 36.215.740,03
Current liabilities 96.565.994,24 70.891,94 8.992.308,21 105.629.194,39
Suppliers 4.634.972,13 4.634.972,13
Loans received 91.105.336,40 3.038.665,26 94.144.001,66
Other accounts payable 825.685,71 5.953.642,95 6.779.328,66
Other financial liabilities 70.891,94 70.891,94
 316.445.069,14 36.286.631,97 30.371.835,56 383.103.536,67

Financial liabilities
  Financial

 liabilities at
amortised cost

 Financial
    liabilities
  valued at

fair value through
   profit or loss

Not covered
    IFRS7 Total

Non-current liabilities 274.926.529,35 16.150.986,99 18.987.641,32 310.065.157,66
Loans received 274.926.529,35 18.987.641,32 293.914.170,67
Other financial liabilities 16.150.986,99 16.150.986,99
Current liabilities 22.216.692,88 46.283,34 8.172.707,58 30.435.683,80
Suppliers 7.008.228,36 7.008.228,36
Loans received 13.808.198,16 1.932.387,89 15.740.586,05
Other accounts payable 1.400.266,36 6.240.319,69 7.640.586,05
Other financial liabilities 46.283,34 46.283,34
 297.143.222,23 16.197.270,33 27.160.348,90 340.500.841,46
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in point 29, sub-paragraph b) of IFRS7). Hence, it was not disclosed.

This leaves the derivative financial instruments, included in the heading Other financial liabilities, which are 
stated at fair value.

2.8.1.1.  Loans received 

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the details of the loans were as follows:

The financing conditions for current bank loans and overdrafts were negotiated on a daily basis, with their 
use being dependent on the lowest spreads.

In 2009, the negotiation established the highest spread at 2%. The 30 day Euribor continued as the most 
used, with a monthly periodicity of payment of interest.

In 2010, the negotiation established the highest spread at 3%. The 30 day Euribor continued as the most 
used, with a monthly periodicity of payment of interest.

This group of loans, in force as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, was characterised as follows:

Ano de 2010

Account 25 - Loans Received
Amortised cost Nominal value

Total Current Non-current Total Current Non-current

251 - Credit and financial institutions 59.400.947,57 38.021.420,22 21.379.527,35 59.272.867,95 37.893.340,60 21.379.527,35
Bank loans 15.339.868,42 15.339.868,42 0,00 15.300.000,00 15.300.000,00 0,00

Bank overdrafts 19.642.886,54 19.642.886,54 0,00 19.562.407,43 19.562.407,43 0,00

Financial leasing 24.418.192,61 3.038.665,26 21.379.527,35 24.410.460,52 3.030.933,17 21.379.527,35

252 - Stock Market 220.987.002,81 1.107.927,91 219.879.074,90 220.000.000,00 0,00 220.000.000,00

Non-convertible debenture loans 220.987.002,81 1.107.927,91 219.879.074,90 220.000.000,00 0,00 220.000.000,00

Debenture loan 07 100.057.857,74 97.426,70 99.960.431,04 100.000.000,00 0,00 100.000.000,00

Debenture loan 09 120.929.145,07 1.010.501,21 119.918.643,86 120.000.000,00 0,00 120.000.000,00

258 - Other sources of funds 55.014.653,83 55.014.653,83 0,00 55.000.000,00 55.000.000,00 0,00

Schuldschein II 55.014.653,83 55.014.653,83 0,00 55.000.000,00 55.000.000,00 0,00

335.402.604,21 94.144.001,96 241.258.602,25 334.272.867,95 92.893.340,60 241.379.527,35

Ano de 2009

Account 25 - Loans Received
Amortised cost Nominal value

Total Current Non-current Total Current Non-current

251 - Credit and financial institutions 33.613.919,65 14.626.278,33 18.987.641,32 33.574.722,23 14.587.080,91 18.987.641,32
Bank loans 7.518.646,41 7.518.646,41 7.500.000,00 7.500.000,00

Bank overdrafts 5.175.244,03 5.175.244,03 5.158.533,23 5.158.533,23

Financial leasing 20.920.029,21 1.932.387,89 18.987.641,32 20.916.189,00 1.928.547,68 18.987.641,32

252 - Stock Market 221.045.212,40 1.111.327,26 219.933.885,14 220.000.000,00 0,00 220.000.000,00

Non-convertible debenture loans 221.045.212,40 1.111.327,26 219.933.885,14 220.000.000,00 0,00 220.000.000,00

Debenture loan 07 100.024.289,74 72.327,22 99.951.962,52 100.000.000,00 100.000.000,00

Debenture loan 09 121.020.922,66 1.039.000,04 119.981.922,62 120.000.000,00 120.000.000,00

258 - Other sources of funds 54.995.924,56 3.280,35 54.992.644,21 55.000.000,00 0,00 55.000.000,00

Schuldschein II 54.995.924,56 3.280,35 54.992.644,21 55.000.000,00 55.000.000,00

309.655.056,61 15.740.885,94 293.914.170,67 308.574.722,23 14.587.080,91 293.987.641,32
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•	 In September 2004, STCP contracted a loan on the Schuldschein market, at 7 years, of the value 
of 55,000 thousand euros. The loan is fully redeemable at par, at the end of it maturity. The 
company may proceed with the early repayment, total or partial, on any due date of the coupon, 
without incurring any penalty.

•	 In June 2007, the company issued a debenture loan of the value of 100 million euros, for 15 ye-
ars. The subscription was private and direct. The rate is variable, indexed to the 6 month Euribor. 
There is a Call-Option, as of the 5th year, total or partial.

•	 In October 2009, the company contracted a debenture loan for 5 years of the value of 120,000 
thousand euros. The repayment of the loan will be made at the nominal value, at the end of the 
maturity of the issuance. This loan was listed for trading on a regulated market.

These three sources of funds benefit from the personal backing of the Portuguese State.

Through a Guarantee contract, the Portuguese Republic unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the pay-
ment of the values corresponding to the principal and interest payable under the terms and conditions of 
the contracts. 

Most of the financing contracts in force have clauses covering a series of usual covenants, establishing the si-
tuations of default, cross default, negative pledge and pari passu. Default on the debt service, the crossing of 
information in the financial system and any early calling in of future liabilities have been agreed and accepted 
by the counterparties. It should also be noted that there are clauses of ownership of the Portuguese State.

The agreed covenants do not, as a rule, have corresponding indicators, with the exception of the clauses of 
ownership which bind the Portuguese State to the full ownership of the company’s share capital, or in other 
cases, to the majority ownership, that is, to over 50% of the share capital.

In 2010 and 2009, the financing conditions of the loans in force are as follows:

Loan Due date Interest rate  Periodicity

Non-convertible debenture loans   
Debenture loan 2002 28-Nov-09 Euribor6M+0,06% 6-monthly
Debenture loan 2007  05-Jun-22 Euribor6M+0,0069% 6-monthly
Debenture loan 2009 09-Oct-14 3,61% 6-monthly
Other Other sources of funds    
Schuldschein I 09-Apr-09 Euribor 6M 6-monthly
Schuldschein II  20-Sep-11 Euribor3M+0,04% Quarterly
FETT loan 31-Dec-09 3% 6-monthly

As at 31 December, the balance sheet date, the company had no situations of default in relation to any of 
the loans incurred.

2.8.1.2.  Other financial assets

The heading Other non-current financial assets includes the additional paid-in share capital granted to the 
participated company STCP Serviços.

The heading Other current financial assets includes the mutual loans granted to the participated company 
STCP Serviços.
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2.8.1.3. Other financial liabilities

The company hedges against the risk of variation in the interest rate of some of the medium and long terms 
loans, by contracting swaps to minimise interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the company had contracted the following derivative instruments:

The two interest rate swaps, in force as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, to hedge 50% of the nominal value 
of the debenture loan, contracted in 2007, will be in force until the maturity of this loan. For both structures, 
and during the initial period of 3 years which ended in December 2010, the company exchanged the receipt 
of the 6 month Euribor rate for a fixed payment of the interest rate. These rates were established for both 
structures, at levels slightly above 2%.  

After the initial period of 3 years, the hedge structures began to include a variable term. This term, directly 
related to the fluctuations of the Euribor and mid swap rate, evolved as follows:

•	 A floor at 2% for variations of the 3 month Euribor and a cap at 6% for variations of the 6 month 
Euribor. Whenever the Euribor is outside the limits of the range, an extra spread is added to the rate 
established at the beginning of the hedge. The addition recorded in a specific coupon is reflected in 
a cumulative effect for the next coupon, that is, a cumulative effect of memory of spreads. When the 
Euribor returns back to within the defined range, the hedge structure has a DigiCoupon of 50bps, 
which is nothing more than an “accelerator effect” of annulment of the cumulative effects of the 
previous coupons.

•	 Daily observations of the 2Y and 10Y mid swap rates. The 10Y mid swap rate cannot fall below a 
level of 2.75%, or, the spread between the 2Y and 10Y mid swap rate cannot fall below -0.25%. 
Whenever the mid swap rate is below the defined limits, a percentage component of daily observa-
tion is added to the rate established at the beginning of the structure, which is reflected in an addi-
tional spread. If the mid swap rate is always above the limits then the structure remains unchanged. 
There are no cumulative effects.

This structure was initially indexed, apart from that described above, to the constraint of a fx-option, with 
certain levels for the EURUSD index levels at specific times in the life of the structure. Since the conditions 
were met in December 2008, there was an automatic exercise of the Knockout EURUSD @ 1.35 option, 
an integral part of the structure in the portfolio and in this way the structure no longer has a EURUSD risk 
component, with all the other terms of the operation remaining unchanged.

It can be concluded that the structures are currently at levels above recent market conditions with respect to 
the fixed component of the hedges.

The mark-to-market as at 31 December 2010 of these operations presents significantly negative values, thus 
reflecting the evolution of the different market variables, such as the interest rates of the 3M Euribor, 6M 

2010 2009

Hedged financing
Nominal

value
Maturity Fair value Current Non-current Fair value Current Non-current

Debenture loan 2007 25.000.000 05-Jun-22 -33.955.530,95 -48.548,18 -33.906.982,77 -15.966.873,33 -20.516,67 -15.946.356,66
Debenture loan 2007 25.000.000 05-Jun-22 -2.331.101,02 -22.343,76 -2.308.757,26 -230.397,00 -25.766,67 -204.630,33
Other financial liabilities -36.286.631,97 -70.891,94 -36.215.740,03 -16.197.270,33 -46.283,34 -16.150.986,99
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Euribor and 2Y and 10Y swap rates. The uncertainty over time, associated to the longevity of the maturity of 
these operations also explains the negative evolution of the mark-to-market.

These derivative instruments are stated at fair value. The calculation of the fair value of the derivatives con-
tracted by the company was carried out by the respective counterparties, the financial institutions with which 
such contracts are concluded.

The valuation at fair value of the interest rate swap is based on Option Pricing Models and Discount Cash-
Flow Models suited to derivative instruments not listed on stock markets (OTC derivative instruments).

For the determination of the fair value of the contracted swap, the evaluation model estimates the future 
cash flow based on the critical variables of valuation of the financial instruments embedded in the swap 
(that is, the different components incorporated in the swap), using, for the effect, the interest rate curve and 
implicit volatilities that are most representative in the market. Apart from the volatility trend, the correlation 
trend, for the period, is also used.

The valuation of the interest rate swap is indicative and representative of the existing market conditions on 
the reference date. The swap may incur significant adjustments in the fair value as a result of relatively minor 
variations in the critical variables and market risk, as well as through the occurrence of abnormal liquidity 
conditions in the market, liquidity risk, or due to direct or indirect sensitivity to other types of factors, and 
variety of risks (credit risk or systemic risk).

The sources used to ensure the reliability of the market parameters underlying the valuation are considered 
credible and consensual.

Although these derivative instruments have been contracted under a policy of hedging against the risk of the 
variation in the interest rate, all the necessary conditions are not met for the accounting of the operations as 
hedge accounting, as established in NCRF 27 - Financial instruments.

Therefore, the net variations in fair value, that occurred in 2010 and 2009, of the value of -20,064,753.04 
euros and 972,666.60 euros of these financial instruments were recognised directly through profit or loss, 
under the headings Fair value reductions of financial instruments (Note 11) and Fair value increases of finan-
cial instruments (Note 11), presented in the income statement by nature under the headings Interest and 
similar income received/granted.

The details of the variations of fair value, in 2010 and 2009, are as follows:

Hedged financing Nominal value Maturity 2010 2009

Debenture loan 2007 25.000.000 05-Jun-22 -17.960.626,11 -1.221.444,07
Debenture loan 2007 25.000.000 05-Jun-22 -2.104.126,93 2.194.109,67

   -20.064.753,04 972.665,60

28.2. Financial risk management

The company is, as is the case of most companies, exposed to market risks: interest rate, credit and liquidity.

There is no exposure to exchange rate risk.
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28.2.1. Interest rate risk - policy and sensitivity analysis

The company is naturally exposed to interest rate risk. The debt is composed of a floating portion and a stable 
component.

In terms of floating debt, the interest rate risk is evident in the lines contracted at variable rates, subject to 
review in the short term, as established contractually.

The stable component of the debt, medium and long term, is divided as follows:

•	 Variable rate, where a portion is hedged with an instrument to manage the interest rate risk 
and,

•	 Fixed rate.

The interest rate risk management policy aims to minimise the financial costs and diversify the underlying 
variables. Part of the exposure to the risk of the variability of the interest rate is mitigated by 2 derivative 
operations, contracted in 2007. The contracted derivatives replicate the partial exposure (50%) of a financing 
operation and refer to the interest maturity periods of the operation which created them.

The performance of the operations is monitored over time, so as to find the structure which best minimises 
the low market value shown. In terms of the future, the contracting of new structures is also contemplated for 
the purpose of reducing or limiting the financial costs, always in a perspective of the total price of the debt.

The longer term debt is indexed to variations in the 3 and 6 month Euribor. This is composed of 2 operations: 
an issuance of bonds of 100 million euros for 15 years and a placement on the Schuldschein market of 55 
million euros for the period of 7 years. A sensitivity analysis of the exposure of these two loans has been 
made to variations in the reference rates, indicating that, according to the 2011 forecast, the costs will stand 
at over 788 thousand euros for a variation of an additional 1% in the interest rate.

The issuance of bonds of 120 million euros for the period of 5 years has a fixed coupon interest rate, and 
therefore, is not exposed to the risk of rate fluctuation.

In 2011, the company will repay the Schuldschein loan of 55 million euros and will issue new debt with a 
similar maturity period, in addition to the funding of its current activity.

Short term funding of operations
The short term debt is exposed to variations in the 1 and 3 month Euribor rate, and to spread variations, 
with the current context being more serious, variable and significant that the actual reference rates. This is 
composed of various current account lines, some backed by promissory notes, whose value currently reaches 
approximately 90 million euros.

Hence, a 1% variation in the interest rate level is reflected in an increase of 336 thousand euros in terms of 
the costs forecast to cover the funding needs determined for 2011.

Financial flow of the swaps
In order to cover the exposure to interest rate risk, mostly variable risk pursuant to the contracts which have 
been concluded, the company contracted 2 derivative operations, with the objective of mitigating and diver-
sifying risk.
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The hedge operations, at the time of their contracting, comply with the following basic principles: they are 
subject to comparative analysis between various other proposals, the counterparties are suitable financial 
institutions and which usually support the company, and the contractual support is the standard one of the 
market – ISDA.

These operations are not undertaken for the purpose of speculation or trading.

The operations are accompanied by a behavioural study of the structure together with the underlying financial 
operation – a mix of the debt, where their implicit rate is determined, in terms of real cash flow, at the present time.
In future terms, the hedge operations carried out are subject to proposals of new hedges so as to improve the 
overall performance. These operations are regularly subject to stress-test scenarios to assess their impact, so 
as to understand the sensitivity of the structure to the short term evolution of the market.

The flows of these hedges in 2011 are estimated at the value of 1.03 million euros.

The increases in the 3 month Euribor rate by above 2% improved the performance of one of the swaps, 
to the extent that the receiving party positively recovered and the paying party no longer accumulated the 
previous spreads.

For the other hedge the scenario is similar, in terms of the fixed component, the increase of the 6 month 
Euribor will enable increasing the receiving part, with the attention being focused on the level of the mid 
swap rates. 

A sensitivity analysis of these structures with upward variations of the Euribor by 1% improve the performan-
ce of the two operations, and a 1% downward variation of the rates is not possible with the current rates, 
since this would place them at 0%.

28.2.2. Liquidity Risk

The company’s financial planning is based on a platform of stability which is characterised by: stable and 
normal market conditions; stable performance of the supporting financial partners and their interest in the 
SEE and their reasonable level of risk; compliance with the debt service which has been assumed; capacity 
to analyse and foresee the risk of default with immediate reporting to the line ministry regarding operations 
backed by the State; possibility of appeal, in the last instance, to the shareholder for one-off situations of 
solvency to meet commitments, thus avoiding the extent of cross-default.

This risk is always analysed by the company, where it has been established that the objective of the diversification of the 
counterparties is to prevent the denouncement of any of the counterparties and the withdrawal of their loans. The com-
pany chooses the instruments best suited to their accounts, their equity and the specificity of their future funding needs.

The assumption of a corporate position of the partners with respective to default or the massive withdrawal 
of liquidity, at the limit, would be met, exclusively, by the assistance of the shareholder, since the values ge-
nerated in the public service provided by the company are not high enough to ensure self-sufficiency.

As noted in the previous paragraph, the company promotes a policy of diversification of its funding sources 
and contracting institutions, monitoring the exposure to each type of operation and each institution, and 
choosing counterparties of demonstrated reputation through their reciprocal business relationship over the 
years. Maturities are dispersed according to the chosen time horizon, from times of less concentration of 
liabilities and from the market conditions at the time of the negotiation.

The objective of the search for operations of consolidation of short term liabilities is, amongst other reasons, that 
of extending the maturity of the debt, releasing lines of support to the business, which, per si, operates at a loss.
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The range of permanent liquidity, as considered in normal market periods, comprises a portfolio of lines which 
are always replaced when approximately 50% of this fund has been used.

This comfortable coefficient enables the company to begin a process whenever necessary at the time of the 
issue of longer term debt and involves various and time-consuming authorisations.

The future cash flow relative to the medium and long term loans are as follows:

Years Interest Repayment Cash-flow

2011 6.061.070,28 55.000.000,00 61.061.070,28
2012 5.619.181,66 5.619.181,66
2013 5.615.668,05 5.615.668,05
2014 5.615.668,05 120.000.000,00 125.615.668,05
2015 1.282.468,05 1.282.468,05
2016 1.285.981,66 1.285.981,66
2017 1.282.468,05 1.282.468,05
2018 1.282.468,05 1.282.468,05
2019 1.282.468,05 1.282.468,05
2020 1.285.981,66 1.285.981,66
2021 1.282.468,05 1.282.468,05
2022 639.477,22 100.000.000,00 100.639.477,22

Reported as at 31 December 2010, the company has approximately 50 million euros of short term lines, 
available for use.

28.2.3. Credit Risk

Regular monitoring is ensured of the values in debt of customers and other receivables, regarding the values 
of credit loaned and any delay in repayment, including analysis of the associated risk of non-collection

The Board of Directors believes that, as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the impairment losses recorded, 
arising from debts receivable, reflect the reality of the assumed risk of non-collection.

The details of the heading Customers and other receivables, according to their maturity and recoverability, are as 
follows:

2010 2009

Without recorded impairment
Customers, current account 1.454.204,13 7.801.927,56
Not due 1.423.166,94 2.179.248,22
Past due 31.037,19 5.622.679,34
      <30 12.053,50 1.328.558,31
      <60 2.952,40 1.307.843,12
      <90 4.102,50 1.212.510,02
     <120 1.280,75 984.507,03
     <180 1.999,35 788.440,91
     >180 8.648,69 819,95
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2010 2009

Other receivables 2.869.624,84 3.567.354.55
Without recorded impairment
Other receivables 1.959.982,30 2.657.712,01
Not due 445.682,18 440.725,45
Past due 1.514.300,12 2.216.986,56
      <30 213.983,64 126.270,46
      <60 333,32 9.647,82
      <90 62.631,58 78.867,65
     <120 126.661,48 87.106,28
     <180 69.757,61 123.433,54
     >180 1.040.932,49 1.791.660,81
With recorded impairment
Other receivables 909.642,54 909.642,54
Not due 0,00 0,00
Past due 909.642,54 909.642,54
    >180 909.642,54 909.642,54

In the heading Other current receivables, particular note should be made of the following values:

•	 813 thousand euros relative to expenses paid on behalf of the Installing Committee of the Metropoli-
tan Transport Authority of Porto and which should be reimbursed by the State:
The Board of Directors considers that, as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the debt in question, in 
spite of its delay in payment, does not present any risk of non-collection therefore there has been no 
recognition of any impairment loss. The motives underlying this decision are:

STCP has paid expenses related to the Metropolitan Transport Authority of Porto, and should be com-
pensated by AMTP as soon as it is effectively appointed and empowered. It was only with the publi-
cation of Law 1/2009 and with the recent appointment of the bodies of the Board of Directors of the 
Metropolitan Transport Authority (Order 17026/2010 of 11.11.2010) that the conditions were created 
to receive the sum in question, with the open balance having been confirmed and recognised, for 
settlement in the short term.

•	 910 thousand euros relative to compensation, debited from Porto Municipality, for the direct costs 
incurred by STCP with the removal of the tram line of the stretches between Praça Cidade S. Salvador 
and Praça Gonçalves Zarco.

Debts overdue more than 90 days are essentially relative to entities of exclusively public capital. The 
analyses of the risk of non-collection were carried out by the Board of Directors which considered that 
only the debt of Porto Municipality was impaired. Hence, the respective impairment was recognised to 
the value of 909,642.54 euros. This impairment was carried over from previous years.

28.3. Costs, Income, Losses and Gains

Costs and losses as well as income and gains relative to the loans received and derivative financial instruments are 
detailed in Note 11.
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28.4. Own Equity Instruments

28.4.1.  Share Capital

The book value of the share capital issued by the company, in 2010 and 2009, corresponds only to the heading
Share capital, of the value of 79,649 thousand euros, which is fully paid-up. The share capital is represented by 
15,929,800 shares merely in book value form, with the nominal value of 5 euros each

During 2010 and 2009 there were no movements in the share capital. The Portuguese State owns 100% of the 
share capital.

28.4.2. Reserves

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the heading Reserves shows the following details:

Reserves 2010 2009

Legal reserves 74.907,42 74.907,42
Other reserves 25.727,80 25.727,80
Other reserves - Free reserves 25.256,95 25.256,95
Other reserves - Staff assistance fund 470,85 470,85

28.4.3 Revaluation Surplus

The movement of the revaluation surplus of tangible and intangible fixed assets, in 2010 and 2009, presented the 
following details:

Intangible assets Tangible fixed assets Total

2010

Balance as at 01.01.2010 0,00 46.373.157,83 46.373.157,83
Amortisations  -413.028,40 -413.028,40
Balance as at 31.12.2010 0,00 45.960.129,43 45.960.129,43

2009

Balance as at 01.01.2009 POC 0,00 16.264.033,10 16.264.033,10
SNC Adjustments  21.566.349,32 21.566.349,32
- Adjustment to pure historical cost  -16.264.033,10 -16.264.033,10
- Revaluation  37.830.382,42 37.830.382,42
Balance as at 01.01.2009 SNC 0,00 37.830.382,42 37.830.382,42
Changes during 2009    
Revaluation  8.940.327,67 8.940.327,67
Amortisations  -397.552,26 -397.552,26

Closing balance for the period 0,00 46.373.157,83 46.373.157,83

28.4.4. Adjustments to Financial Assets

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the heading Adjustments to financial assets shows the following details:
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 2010 2009

Transition adjustments -32.699,86 -32.699,86
  STCP Serviços -5.000,00 -5.000,00
 Autoloc -139,83 -139,83
 Transpublicidade -27.560,03 -27.560,03
Non-distributed profit 154.796,62 128.811,73
  Transpublicidade 154.796,62 128.811,73

Adjustments to financial assets - Relative to MEP 122.096,76 96.111,87

28.4.5. Other changes in equity

The heading Other changes in equity, as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, presented the following details:

 2010 2009

Grants 1.125.054,28 1.890.569,74
 Assets subject to amortisation - Attributed value 7.038.055,92 7.114.108,88
 Assets subject to amortisation - Retained earnings -5.913.001,64 -5.223.539,14
Donations 281.048,63 281.048,63

Other changes in equity 1.406.102,91 2.171.618,37

28.4.6. Earnings per share

For 2010 and 2009, the earnings per share were determined as follows:

 2010 2009

Net income for the period -37.677.163,38 -23.652.563,86
Weighted average number of shares 15.929.800 15.929.800

Basic earnings per share -2,37 -1,48

Since there were no situations leading to dilution, the net income per share is the same as the basic earnings per 
share.

29. Employee Benefits

The company has had a defined benefits plan since 1 May 1975, which establishes the attribution of a supplementary 
pension for the retirement and invalidity of all workers with permanent employment contracts, signed up to 2005 
inclusively, which is calculated based on a fixed formula, and is paid provided that the sum of the pension attributed by 
Social Security plus this supplement does not exceed 650 euros (value in force since 2007).

In December 1998, the company transferred its liability to the BPI Open Pensions Fund, proceeding, through the 
signing of the Adherence contract, with an initial endowment of 3,042,667 euros, corresponding to 304,158.66 
participation units.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, according to an actuarial study carried out by BPI PENSÕES, the present value 
of the liabilities assumed with responsibilities for retirement and invalidity supplementary pensions was as follows:
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 2010 2009

Costs related to past services of pensioners 3.267.798,00 3.459.296,00
Costs related to past services of active workers 0,00 31.999,00

Liability of the fund 3.267.798,00 3.491.295,00

The financial and actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial assessment of the liabilities, in 2010 and 2009, were 
as follows:

(*) Prior to 2001 this was 1%, in the long term.

(**) Prior to 2001 the ceiling was 548. 68 euros. From 2001 until 2006 inclusively, it became 598.56 euros.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the movements in the pensions fund were as follows:

 2010 2009

Value of the assets in the fund at the beginning of the year 2.626.274,00 3.045.472,00
Company contributions 235.371,00 0
Pensions paid -575.250,00 -612.169,00
Effective income: 52.146,00 192.970,00
Projected rate of return of the fund net of commissions 115.877,00 136.317,00
Income gains/(losses) -63.731,00 56.653,00

Value of the assets in the fund at the end of the year 2.338.541,00 2.626.274,00

At the closing date of the accounts it was not possible to reliably estimate the expected value of the contributions 
for 2010, since this value will be determined in accordance with the funding level.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the alterations in the liabilities assumed in relation to supplementary retire-
ment and invalidity pensions were as follows:

 2010 2009

Liabilities at the beginning of the year 3.491.295,00 3.882.068,00
Current service costs 23.337,00 27.603,00
Interest costs 192.354,00 215.432,00
Projected pensions -617.452,00 -638.270,00
Actuarial losses/(gains) related to experience -139.713,00 4.462,00
Gains/(losses) from changes in the discount rate 317.977,00 0,00

Liabilities at the end of the year 3.267.798,00 3.491.295,00

Assumptions 2010 2009

Discount rate 4,75% 6,00%

Projected rate of return 5% 5%

Growth rate of the ceiling (**) Without growth, fixed value of 650.00 euros

Growth rate of Social Security pensions (*) 1,75% 2%

Growth rate of STCP pensions
Same as the growth rate of Social Security pensions limited by the difference between the

                       value of the ceiling and Social Security pension

Salary growth rate Not applicable
1% above the pensions

growth rate

Mortality table French table TV 73/77

Invalidity table Not applicable Swiss table EKV-80
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During the years ended in 2010 and 2009, the following values were recognised through profit or loss, under the heading 
Staff costs, arising from liabilities due to supplementary retirement and invalidity pensions:

 2010 2009

Current service costs 23.337,00 27.603,00
Interest costs 192.354,00 215.432,00
Projected rate of return -115.877,00 -136.317,00
Actuarial losses/(gains) 199.793,00 -78.292,00
     Actuarial losses/(gains) related to experience -139.713,00 4.462,00
     Income losses/(gains) 63.731,00 -56.653,00
     Losses/(gains) in benefits (pensions) -42.202,00 -26.101,00
     Losses/) from changes in the discount rate 317.977,00 0,00 

 299.607,00 28.426,00  

The evolution of the gains and losses arising from adjustments of experience were as follows:

 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Plan liabilities

Gains/(losses) related to experience 139.713,00 -4.462,00 62.774,00 -66.329,00 38.028,00
% Liabilities for past services 4,3% -0,1% 1,6% -1,5% 1,0%

Plan assets      

Income gains/(losses) -63.731,00 56.653,00 -501.369,00 -44.129,00 53.111,00
% Plan assets -2,7% 2,2% -16,5% -1,1% 1,3%

The effective rates of return of the Pensions Fund in the last 5 years were as follows:

 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Effective rate of return 2.8% 8.22% -8.05% 4.07% 7.20% 

Paragraph 104.A. of IAS19 is not applicable.

The evolution of the last 5 years of the present value of the defined benefits liability, in the fair value of the plan’s 
assets and plan’s surplus or deficit, were as follows:

Year Fund liabilities Value of Fund Assets Fund Deficit/Surplus Fund Coverage Rate

2006 3.796.726,00 4.224.049,00 427.323,00 111%
2007 4.306.315,00 3.997.361,00 -308.954,00 93%
2008 3.882.068,00 3.045.472,00 -836.596,00 78%
2009 3.491.295,00 2.626.274,00 -865.021,00 75%
2010 3.267.798,00 2.338.541,00 -929.257,00 72%

A composição do Fundo de Pensões Aberto BPI Valorização a 31  de Dezembro de 2010 e 2009 era a seguinte: 
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2010 2009

Composition Valor % Valor %

Shares 43.724.678 33,7% 43.410.671 34,3%
Real estate 2.828.076 2,2% 2.823.860 2,2%

Bonds at indexed rate 48.751.537 37,5% 47.190.685 37,3%
Bonds at fixed rate 8.470.393 6,5% 12.539.026 9,9%

Absolute return 5.640.592 4,3% 8.452.588 6,7%
Liquidity 20.464.740 15,8% 12.211.693 9,6%

129.880.016 126.628.523

As at 31 December 2010, the net worth of the adherence of STCP to the BPI Open Pensions Fund BPI Valoriza-
ção was 2,338,541.00 euros, which represented 1.82% of the total value of the Pensions Fund. As at 31
December 2009, the net worth of the adherence of STCP to the BPI Open Pensions Fund BPI Valorização was
2,626,274 euros, which represented 2.07% of the total value of the Pensions Fund.

The composition of the Open Pensions Fund BPI Valorização has no assets of the company Sociedade de Trans-
portes Colectivos do Porto (STCP).

30. Disclosures Required by Legal Diplomas

There is nothing of relevance to note.

31. Suppliers and Other payables

Debts to suppliers, as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, showed the following details and late payment:

2010 2009

Suppliers - current accounts 4.634.972,13 7.008.228,36
Not due 2.803.600,70 3.853.396,90
Past due 1.284.997,44 2.830.859,87
     <30 1.094.013,63 822.849,45
     <60 83.545,83 209.683,64
     <90 28.756,87 73.232,48
    <120 8.176,18 35.643,38
    <180 23.095,00 35.719,50
    >180 47.409,93 1.653.731,42
Reception and conference 546.373,99 323.971,59
Fixed asset suppliers 459.558,08 764.353,51
Not due 290,40 187.725,92
Past due 459.267,68 576.627,59
     <30 30.254,48 161.072,64
     <60 9.855,45
     <90 532,40
    <120 15.707,70 79.222,15
    <180 2.010,00
    >180 402.917,65 334.322,80
Other payables 243.118,76 491.019,13
Not due 243.118,76 238.133,23
Past due 252.885,90
     <30 3.222,00
     <60 30.529,37
    <120 215.278,50
    <180 3.856,03
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Debts to suppliers and accounts payable were recorded at their nominal value because these items do not earn 
interest and, on the other hand, the effect of their financial discount is not materially relevant, in view of the 
applicable average period of payment (which is purely commercial: 60 days).

32. State and Other Public Entities

EAs at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the details of the heading State and other public entities were as follows:

2010 2009

 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Income tax (IRC) 476.838,16  506.612,31  
  IRC - payments on account 471.000,00  401.000,00  

  IRC - Calculation 5.838,16  105.612,31  
     

Income tax withholdings  249.781,10  233.776,75
Value added tax 2.568.803,94  385.993,67 420.900,74

Other taxes  5.110,65  4.492,26
Social Security contributions  717.649,09  723.695,05

Local government taxation     
Other taxation  5.314,80  11.344,80

State and other public bodies 3.045.642,10 977.855,64 892.605,98 1.394.209,60

33. Other accounts payable and receivable

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the details of Other accounts payable and receivable were as follows:

Other accounts payable 2010 2009

Fixed asset suppliers - current accounts 459.558,08 764.353,51
Accrued costs payable 5.953.642,95 6.240.319,69
Staff 118.494,77 144.389,72
Payable customer balances 4.514,10 504,00
Miscellaneous payables 243.118,76 491.019,13

 6.779.328,66 7.640.586,05

Accrued costs payable 2010 2009

External supplies and services - Outsourcing 57.718,11 23.709,52
External supplies and services - Specialised work 643.786,80 796.143,56
External supplies and services - Energy and other liquids 8.960,53 40.575,39
External supplies and services - Miscellaneous services 557.644,14 483.675,84
 Staff costs 4.552.765,43 4.616.492,24
 Other Costs and Losses 132.767,94 279.723,14

 5.953.642,95 6.240.319,69

Other accounts receivable 2010 2009

Accrued income receivable 3.141.940,41 1.075.140,97
Staff 306.885,47 289.598,27
Receivable supplier balances 1.220,50 5.968,07
Miscellaneous receivables 2.869.624,84 3.567.354,55

Gross value 6.319.671,22 4.938.061,86

Accumulated impairment losses -909.642,54 -909.642,54

Book value 5.410.028,68 4.028.419,32
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Accrued income receivable 2010 2009

Services 1.985.390,29 880.066,12
Operating grants 954.819,72 0,00
Other income and gains - Supplementary income 0,00 54.029,97
Other income and gains - Other 201.702,40 141.044,88
Interest receivable 28,00 0,00

 3.141.940,41 1.075.140,97

34. Deferrals

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the heading Deferrals, in Current assets and Current liabilities, showed the 
following details:

Deferrals 2010 2009

Costs to be recognised 343.710,48 400.073,57
External supplies and services 334.977,73 350.259,65
 Other Costs and Losses 8.732,75 49.813,92
 
Income to be recognised 882.612,00 897.716,54
Services 689.381,44 839.477,80
Other income and gains 193.230,56 58.238,74

35. External Supplies and Services

The heading External supplies and services, in 2010 and 2009, were detailed as follows:

2010 2009

Outsourcing 6.316.252,45 5.858.499,20
Specialised services 6.546.040,94 6.983.500,46
  Specialised work 304.484,48 347.432,61
  Advertising and publicity 96.601,12 125.707,85
  Surveillance and security 353.316,07 434.147,35
  Fees 142.837,27 183.416,16
  Commissions 2.025.210,31 1.949.722,22
  Maintenance and repair 3.284.938,31 3.532.841,94
  Communication and public information 37.654,26 66.619,37
  Other 300.999,12 343.612,96

Materials 69.127,07 70.232,83
Energy and liquids 10.896.566,59 9.566.187,29
  Electricity 440.569,16 509.248,61
  Fuel 10.417.471,56 9.026.885,99
  Other 38.525,87 30.052,69

Travel, hotel and transport 15.588,15 20.898,31
Miscellaneous services 8.767.564,24 9.103.885,80
  Rents 6.113.127,05 6.308.187,10
  Communication 441.055,44 430.904,56
  Insurance 603.493,67 589.853,60
  Royalties 127.793,39 129.258,62
  Litigation and notary services 8.768,62 34.897,91
  Representation expenses 20.464,04 23.565,08
  Cleaning, hygiene and comfort 1.236.162,41 1.285.066,84
  Other services 216.699,62 302.152,09

External supplies and services 32.611.139,44 31.603.203,89
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36. Personnel Costs

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the details of Staff costs are as follows:

 2010 2009

Remuneration of governing bodies 472.270,73 487.651,30
Salaries paid to the staff 30.561.411,47 30.311.201,74
Post-employment benefits 346.410,25 81.159,11
Payroll costs 6.751.009,96 6.710.000,42
Accidents at work and occupational diseases 383.971,05 357.829,05
Social action costs 416.275,66 391.712,55
Compensatory payments 954.363,08 2.193.075,36

Other staff costs 113.780,39 198.397,33

Staff costs 39.999.492,59 40.731.026,86

37. Other Costs and Losses 

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the details of Other operating costs and losses are as follows:

38. Other Income and Gains

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the details of Other operating income are as follows:

2010 2009

Other costs and losses 1.313.735,28 1.267.069,67

Taxes 129.656,46 95.293,95
   Direct taxes 88.922,74 70.157,90
   Indirect taxes 25.264,00 5.368,77
   Rates 15.469,72 19.767,28

Uncollectable debts 325,00  
Inventory losses 75.615,01 146.648,61
   Inventory losses - Breakage/waste 8.939,24 6.155,74
   Inventory losses - Write-offs 66.675,77 140.492,87

Costs and losses in non-financial investments 281.882,83 21.622,57
  Disposals  1.365,34
  Write-offs 1.239,98 20.257,23
  Investment property costs 20.642,85  
  Other non-financial costs and losses 260.000,00  

Other costs and losses 826.255,98 1.003.504,54
   Donations 100.186,52 99.983,98
   Levies 27.701,63 30.502,95
   Insufficient estimate of taxes  425,68
   Compensations for claims 690.187,11 682.659,28
   Other Operating Costs and Losses 8.180,72 189.932,65

Financing gains and losses 54.161,90 24.837,73

Interest paid 33.591,51 45,67
    Other interest 33.591,51 45,67
Unfavourable currency conversion differences  2,14
Other financing costs and losses 20.570,39 24.789,92

 1.367.897,18 1.291.907,40
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39. Liabilities due to guarantees provided

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the liabilities assumed relative to guarantees provided to third parties were 
as follows:

Beneficiary of the Guarantee Description 2010 2009

Ministry of Internal Administration
Self-protection services for activities
pursuant to § f), number 2 of article 1 of
DL 276/93

19.000,00 19.000,00

Labour Courts Work accident pensions 447.430,41 447.430,41
EDP Serviço Universal Supply of energy 9.168,00 9.168,00
Porto Adm. Fiscal Court Dispute relative to the SAE grant 341.497,02 341.497,02
Gondomar Judicial Court Dispute with Imgoval 245.564,00 245.564,00

1.062.659,43 1.062.659,43

40. Number of Staff

During the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the average number of employees working for the company 
was 1,512 and 1,502, respectively.

41. Negative Equity

During the year ended on 31 December 2010, the company incurred a loss of 37,677,163.38 euros, since on that 
date its total liabilities exceeded its total assets by 275,747,187.80 euros.

2010 2009

Other income and gains 3.399.112,85 3.786.858,95 

Supplementary income 1.751.311,99 1.992.935,63
Cash discounts 12.116,11 19.750,47
Inventory gains 74.215,96 148.833,57
  Inventory gains - Unsold items 9.589,06 46.165,35
  Inventory gains - Other gains 64.626,90 102.668,22
Income and gains in non-financial investments 254.843,71 54.585,28
  Disposals 2.198,80 54.585,28
  Rents and other income from investment properties 252.644,91
Other income and gains 1.306.625,08 1.570.754,00
  Other income and gains - Imputation of investment grants 769.270,18 1.037.759,11
  Other income and gains - Claims 277.361,80 163.510,24
  Other income and gains - Other grants 36.233,62
  Other non-specified 223.759,48 369.484,65

Interest, dividends and similar income 4.262,79 €

Interest received 4.262,79
Interest received - From other funding granted 4.262,79

Other income and gains in the income statement 3.399.112,85 3.791.121,74 
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On celebrating 140 years of existence in 2010, STCP considers that by being part of the Corporate Sector of the 
Portuguese State, since it is a company of exclusively public capital, whose ultimate goal is the delivery of a service 
of a wider general interest, with a significant share of compulsory social service, instead of aiming at the profit, it 
plays a key role imposing the State to cover the costs resulting from this social service and to ensure the continuity 
of its activity.

Although the company has continuously shown negative results, there is no doubt about its continuity, as demons-
trated by the fact that the Portuguese State continues to be the guarantor of the non-current operations providing 
financial support. This point will be noted in future annual reports.

Porto, 1 March 2011

Certified Accountant number 6622	

The Board of Directors
                 Chairwoman
                     Members
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DYNAMISM

CULTURAL PROMOTION
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8 Other Information	
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8.1 Key Activity Indicators

NETWORK 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09 PP

Operating Lines 83 83 83 85 2,4%

Road 80 80 80 82 2,5%

Trams 3 3 3 3 0,0%

Municipalities Covered 6 6 6 6 0,0%

Parishes Covered 52 52 52 53 1,9%

Stops 2.712 2.724 2.707 2.720 0,5%

Extension (km) 533,0 537,1 541,8 545,6 0,7%

Road 531,5 534,8 539,4 543,2 0,7%

Trams 8,7 8,7 8,9 8,9 0,0%

BUS Corridors 23,4 24,5 24,6 24,7 0,2%

DEMAND 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Passengers                                                                                                                                                                          (valores em milhares)

Buses 108.834 110.993 107.945 108.830 0,8%

Own Production 96.045 98.355 94.720 95.515 0,8%

Private Operators 12.789 12.637 13.225 13.315 0,7%

Trams 268 261 298 389,86 30,7%

Passengers 109.102 111.254 108.243 109.220 1%

Passengers km 432.875 441.425 410.404 388.666 -5%

Type of tickets used 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09 PP

Mono-modal passengers 83,6% 74,9% 68,0% 63,2% -4,8

- passes 65,0% 58,9% 54,5% 50,8% -3,8

- occasional tickets 13,7% 11,2% 9,2% 7,9% -1,3

- loose + daily tickets 4,9% 4,8% 4,3% 4,4% 0,2

inter-modal passengers 16,4% 25,1% 32,0% 36,8% 4,8

- passes 13,5% 20,2% 26,1% 29,6% 3,6

- occasional tickets 3,0% 4,7% 5,5% 6,6% 1,1

- andante tour 0,02% 0,28% 0,46% 0,7% 0,2

REVENUE 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Net revenue by type of fare price                                                                                                                              (values in thousand euros)

Mono-modal Revenue 39.902 37.424 32.812 31.121 -5%

Andante Revenue 6.814 11.966 14.730 18.045 23%

Total 46.716 49.390 47.542 49.166 3,4%



Accounts for the  Financial Year and Appendices 2010 173

SALES NETWORK 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Sales channels

Payshop Agents 452 493 487 495 2%

CTT Offices 86 86 85 85 0%

STCP Posts 4 4 4 3 -25%

Andante Shops 13 11 12 10 -17%

CP Ticket Office 2 5 5 5 0%

MVAs MP 173 177 179 179 0%

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

By Entry Channel

Office of Public Defender 2.042 998 615 487 -21%

Blue Line 1.821 1.607 1.139 1.011 -11%

Complaints Book 470 241 199 210 6%

Other Channels 483 450 632 362 -43%

Total Complaints 4.816 3.296 2.585 2.070 -20%

TYPE OF COMPLAINT 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Network and Routes 1.350 185 81 61 -25%

Time-tables 1.042 1.358 1.228 932 -24%

Ticket System 942 411 257 213 -17%

Staff Behaviour 690 447 349 406 16%

Information for the Public 402 307 201 144 -28%

Stops and Shelters 205 136 90 64 -29%

Other 184 374 160 183 14%

Behaviour with Legal Coverage 62 178 25 -86%

Vehicles 16 41 42 2%

Total 4.816 3.296 2.585 2.070 -20%
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SUPPLY 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Total Production                                                                                                                                                              (values in thousand km)

Buses 29.628 29.452 28.786 29.740 3%

Trams 87 83 91 108 19%

Vehicles km 29.715 29.535 28.877 29.848 3%

Buses 2.597.221 2.566.339 2.513.430 2.602.705 4%

Trams 3.890 3.500 3.813 4.538 19%

Places km 2.601.111 2.569.839 2.517.243 2.607.242 4%

Overall Occupancy Rate

Buses 16,6% 17,2% 16,3% 14,9% -1,4 pp

Trams 20,7% 22,4% 16,8% 15,9% -0,9 pp

Total Commercial Speed

Buses 16,0 16,2 16,2 16,1 -1%

Trams 7,9 7,4 7,5 7,6 2%

Production of Own Bus Fleet                                                                                                                                              (values in thousands)

Average No. Vehicles (unit) 422 407 390 401 3%

Vehicles km 25.386 25.387 24.770 25.724 4%

Places km 2.272.414 2.254.910 2.206.567 2.296.833 4%

Vehicles hour 1.606 1.581 1.542 1.613 5%

Indicators of the Own Bus Fleet Supply

Occupancy Rate (%) 17% 17% 16% 14,5% -1,4 pp

Commercial Speed (km/h) 15,8 16,1 16,1 15,9 -1%

Collision accident rate (per million km) 40 37 43 39 -8%

Production of the Private Operator Fleet                                                                                                                          (values in thousands)

Vehicles km 4.242 4.066 4.015 4.016 0%

Places km 324.806 311.429 306.863 305.872 0%

Vehicles hour 251 241 238 238 0%

Indicators of the Private Operator Fleet Supply

Occupancy Rate (%) 15,6% 16,1% 19,4% 18,2% -1,2 pp

Commercial Speed (km/h) 16,9 16,9 16,9 16,9 0%

Production of the Tram Fleet                                                                                                                                                   (values in thousands)

Average No. Vehicles (unit) 3 4 4 4 0%

Vehicles km 87 83 91 108 19%

Places km 3.890 3.500 3.813 4.538 19%

Vehicles hour 11 11 12 14 17%

Indicators of the Tram Supply

Occupancy Rate (%) 20,7% 22,4% 16,8% 15,9% -0,9 pp

Commercial Speed (km/h) 7,9 7,4 7,5 7,6 2%

Indicators of Detours

Number of Detours n.d. 222 285 278 -2%

Due to Works n.d. 132 185 187 1%

Due to Street Parties n.d. 90 100 91 -9%

Average Duration of the Detours (days) 17 19 21 13%
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HUMAN RESOURCES 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Total Employees as at 31/12 1.623 1.521 1.490 1.496 0%

SP Drivers as at 31/12 1.051 998 975 978 0%

Crew (% total) 65,4% 66,3% 66,0% 66,0% 0,0 pp

Average Total Employees 1.645 1.591 1.502 1.512 1%

Employee Distribution

Male Employees 1.533 1.434 1.415 1.401 -1,0%

Female Employees 90 87 87 95 9,2%

Absenteeism

Overall Rate as at 31/12 (%) 7,1% 7,8% 8,3% 7,2% -1,1 pp

Crew (%) 8,3% 9,0% 9,1% 7,5% -1,7 pp

Other (%) 4,7% 5,4% 6,6% 6,7% 0,1 pp

Supplementary Work

Hours 103.124 116.874 132.041 131.290 -1%

Crew 84.557 98.857 120.225 120.959 1%

Value (thousand euros) 890 1.028 1.160 1.133 -2%

Crew 704 840 1.023 1.014 -1%

Age Structure

18-29 34 19 21 16 -24%

30-49 737 708 700 735 5%

> 49 852 794 769 745 -3%

Total 1.623 1.521 1.490 1.496 0%

Training

Hours 5.001 11.373 15.642 20.518 31%

Crew 3.640 5.859 11.169 16.023 43%

Continuous Training 3.640 5.859 6.099 3.175 -48%

Workers 563 894 773 783 1%

Crew  508 679 643 571 -11%

Continuous Training 508 679 598 75 -87%
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FLEET 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Fleet Composition

Buses 493 473 472 489 3,6%

Trams 8 8 8 5 -37,5%

Total 501 481 480 494 2,9%

Composition of the bus fleet

Diesel vehicles 238 218 217 234 7,8%

Standard 233 213 212 209 -1,4%

Articulated 0 0 0 20 -

Minis 5 5 5 5 0,0%

Natural gas vehicles 255 255 255 255 0,0%

Standard 225 225 225 225 0,0%

Articulated 30 30 30 30 0,0%

Bus fleet 493 473 472 489 3,6%

Fleet Characteristics

Natural gas 51,7% 53,9% 54,0% 52,1% -1,9 pp

Air conditioned 69,6% 72,5% 72,7% 74,2% 1,6 pp

Lowered floor 87,8% 91,5% 91,7% 92,6% 0,9 pp

Folding ramp 54,4% 56,7% 56,8% 58,9% 2,1 pp

Average Age

Trams 69,75 70,55 71,55 72,55 1,0 abs

Buses 6,68 7,46 8,45 9,04 0,6 abs

Diesel 9,06 9,75 10,74 10,71 0,0 abs

Natural gas 4,46 5,51 6,51 7,51 1,0 abs

Vehicle consumption by type of fuel used 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Diesel (l/100 km) 52,68 52,04 52,27 52,78 1%

Total Costs ('000 €) 5.637 5.242 4.232 5.364 27%

Cost per 100 km 42,76 48,31 38,18 46,00 20%

Average Cost (€/per litre) 0,81 0,93 0,73 0,87 19%

Natural Gas (m3/100 km) 68,47 68,35 68,35 68,61 0%

Total Costs ('000 €) 3.903 5.399 4.610 4.842 5%

Cost per 100 km 29,25 35,27 31,90 32,62 2%

Average Cost (€/m3) 0,43 0,52 0,54 0,48 -12%

Traction Energy (Kwh/100 km) 246,07 266,13 297,10 268,92 -9%

Total Cost ('000 €) 24 28 37 37 0%

Cost per 100 Km 27,18 32,78 37,89 33,03 -13%

Average Cost (€/kw) 0,11 0,12 0,13 0,12 -4%

Fleet Operations

Imobilisation Rate 6,6% 5,8% 6,7% 7,9% 1,2 pp

Breakdown Rate (per thousand km) 1,22 1,19 1,17 1,19 2%
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ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL

POC                                                                                                                                                                              (values in thousand euros)

Costs 2007 2008

External Supplies and Services + Cost of Goods Sold and 
Materials Consumed (ESS+CGSMC)

36.137 37.371

Staff Costs 38.440 38.777

Amortisations and Provisions 8.287 8.917

Operating 83.523 85.788

Financial 11.297 25.694

Current 94.820 111.482

Exceptional 2.194 2.351

Total Costs 97.032 113.866

% Staff Costs

Staff Costs/Operating Costs 46,02% 46,02%

Staff Costs/Total Costs 39,6% 39,6%

Transport ticket revenue/Staff costs 1,2 1,2

SNC

Costs 2009 2010 10/09

ESS+CGSMC 33.178 34.032 2,6%

Staff costs 40.731 39.999 -1,8%

Costs/reversals - depreciation, amortisation and provisions 8.385 6.531 -22,1%

Operating 87.887 81.963 -6,7%

Interest and similar expenses paid 10.437 28.383 25.694

Total Costs 98.355 110.386 12,2%

% Staff Costs

Staff Costs/Operating Costs 46,3% 48,8% 2,46 pp

Staff Costs/Total Costs 41,4% 36,2% -5,18 pp

Transport ticket revenue/Staff costs 1,17 1,23 5,3%

Income 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(valores em milhares de euros)

Total Income 70.352 74.987 74.702 72.709 -2,7%

Transport tickets 46.716 49.390 47.541 49.166 3,4%

PAII 870 947 982 955 -2,7%

Compensatory Indemnities 16.897 17.812 19.156 18.975 -0,9%

Other income and gains 5.869 6.838 7.023 3.612 -49%

State Financial Effort 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(values in thousand euros)

Compensatory Indemnities - Mono-modal System 16.623 17.812 19.156 18.975 -0,94%

Fare Price Compensation - Andante Inter-modal System 274 743 981 1.970 100,71%

PAII 870 947 982 955 -2,74%

Total 17.767 19.501 21.119 21.900 3,70%
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Net Income 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(values in thousand euros)

Net Operating Income -15.077 -14.132 -15.903 -9.254 42%

Before Compensatory Indemnities -31.974 -31.945 -35.059 -28.230 19%

Net Financial Income -11.243 -24.068 -7.719 -28.383 -268%

Net Income for the Year -26.680 -38.879 -23.653 -37.677 -59%

Before Swap -28.189 -24.625 -17.612 28%

Before Compensatory Indemnities -43.578 -56.691 -42.809 -56.653 -32%

2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(values in euros per thousand Km)

Operating Income / Passenger Km 158,12 162,33 175,40 187,07 6,7%

Before Compensatory Indemnities 119,08 121,98 128,72 138,25 7,4%

Operating Costs / Passenger Km 192,95 194,34 214,15 210,88 -1,5%

Before Amortisation 175,88 175,55 194,59 194,09 -0,3%

Operating Income / Place Km 26,31 27,88 28,60 27,89 -2,5%

Before Compensatory Indemnities 19,82 20,95 20,99 20,61 -1,8%

Operating Costs / Place Km 32,11 33,38 34,91 31,44 -10,0%

Before Amortisation 29,27 30,15 31,73 28,93 -8,8%

% operating costs 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Services 56,7% 57,8% 54,3% 60,2% 5,9 pp

Operating Grants 21,3% 21,9% 22,9% 24,3% 1,4 pp

Operating Income 84,2% 83,5% 81,9% 88,7% 6,8 pp

Activity Indicators 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(values in thousand euros)

Production 65.971 68.921 68.006 69.310 1,9%

By average employee 40,1 43,3 45,3 45,8 1,2%

Before Compensatory Indemnities 49.073 51.109 48.850 50.334 3,0%

Gross Value Added 31.650 33.321 37.327 37.309 -0,1%

By average employee 19,2 20,9 24,9 24,7 -0,7%

Before Compensatory Indemnities 14.753 15.509 18.171 18.333 0,9%

2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(values in days)

Average Payment Period 84,2 92,3 77,3 54,4 -30%

Average Receipt Period 22,6 43,6 58,8 10,6 -82%

The average payment period for 2009 was calculated in accordance with Council of Ministers Regulation 34/2008 and Order 9870/2009.

2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

General Liquidity Ratio 23,2% 10,4% 27,7% 3,4% -24,4 pp

Quick Liquidity Ratio 21,6% 9,9% 25,7% 2,7% -23,0 pp

Immediate Liquidity Ratio 0,4% 0,2% 0,6% 1,0% 0,4 pp
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Balance Sheet Structure 2007 2008

(values in thousand euros)

Assets 90.138 92.151

Fixed Assets 77.895 75.768

Current Assets 9.563 13.951

Accruals and Deferrals 2.680 2.433

Equity and Liabilities 90.138 92.151

Equity -201.889 -247.197

Liabilities 292.027 339.348

Balance Sheet Structure 2009 2010 10/09

Assets 110.950 114.746 3%

Non-current 96.948 102.624 6%

Current 14.002 12.122 -13%

Equity and Liabilities 110.950 114.746 3%

Equity -237.305 -275.747 -16%

Liabilities 348.254 390.493 12%

Financial Liabilities 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(values in thousand euros)

Medium and Long Term 229.834 155.000 275.000 275.000 0%

Debenture Loan 129.000 100.000 220.000 220.000 0%

Bank Loans 80.000 55.000 55.000 55.000 0%

Other Loans 20834 0 0 0 0%

Short Term 31.027 115.661 12.659 34.862 175%

Debenture Loan 0 29.000 0 0 -

Bank Loans 29.811 86.659 12.659 34.862 175%

Other Loans 1.216 2 0 0 -

TOTAL 260.861 270.661 287.659 309.862 8%

Investments 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(values in thousand euros)

Rolling Stock 23.162 4.874 163 11.765 7124%

Infrastructures 836 29 381 220 -42%

Other 689 696 962 270 -72%

Total 24.688 5.600 1.506 12.255 714%
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Energy consumption 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

CE Electricity

(kwh) 220.478 253.089 286.732 297.652 4%

Kwh/100km 246 295 297 271 -9%

TPE 47 54 62 64 3%

Fixed Installed Electricity

(kwh) 4.839.465 5.020.939 4.800.421 4.940.201 3%

TPE 1.040 1.080 1.032 1.062 3%

Diesel

Litres 6.944.829 5.647.060 5.793.505 6.154.613 6%

litres/100km 52,68 52,04 52,27 52,78 1%

TPE 5.941 4.831 4.953 5.262 6%

Natural gas

Cubic meters 9.138.591 10.461.226 9.875.031 10.184.235 3%

m3/100km 68,47 68,35 68,35 68,61 0%

TPE 8.270 9.467 8.937 9.217 3%

Total TPE 15.299 15.432 14.984 15.605 4%

TPE - ton petroleum equivalent

Other Activity Indicators 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Weighted Variation of the Fare Prices (Mono-modal) 2,0% 4,5% 0,0% 0,8% 0,8 pp

Annual Inflation Rate 2,4% 2,6% -1,0% 1,4% 2,4 pp

Variation of the Unit Average Cost of Diesel 3,0% 14,4% -21,3% 19,3% 40,6 pp

Variation of the Unit Average Cost of Natural Gas 2,2% 20,8% 4,3% 1,8% -2,4 pp

Productivity 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

Vehicle Km (10^3) / Average Staff 18,1 18,6 19,2 19,7 2,7%

Place Km (10^3) / Average Staff 1.581,2 1.615,2 1.675,9 1.724,4 2,9%

Passenger (10^3) / Average Staff 66,3 69,9 72,1 72,2 0,2%

Passenger Km (10^3) / Average Staff 263,1 277,5 273,2 257,1 -5,9%

Network Extension (Km) / Average Staff 0,32 0,33 0,36 0,36 0,0%

Evolution of supplementary pensions 2007 2008 2009 2010 10/09

(values in thousand euros)

Supplementary Pensions paid in the year 608 634 612 575 -6%

Average number of pensioners 346 321 315 307 -3%
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8.2 KEY GRI INDICATORS

Since 2006, STCP has prepared a single report, called the Management and Sustainability Report, providing the 
information of a GRI (Global Reporting Initiative) structure for a GRI index that is an integral part of this report and 
presenting the following tables. Although STCP fully complies with the content and application of the GRI, it has 
never decided to issue its own statement of a certain level based on its own assessment of the content of the report, 
and, up to date, has never requested this analysis from an external entity.

1. Strategy and Analysis
1.1 Statement of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors 7-8

1.1 Impacts on sustainability, risks and opportunities arising from the sustainability trend
21-50, 
74-77

2. Organisational Profile
2.1 Name of the organisation 52, 110
2.2 Main products and/or services 52, 110
2.3 Operating structure of the organisation 60
2.4 Location of the head office of the organisation 184
2.5 Countries in which it operates 10
2.6 Type and legal form of ownership 52, 110
2.7 Markets covered 10
2.8 Size of the organization 10
2.9 Main alterations which have occurred during the reporting period, relative to the size, organisational structure or shareholder structure NR
2.10 Awards received during the period covered by the report 11, 40

3. Parameters for the Report
3.1 Period covered by the report 3
3.2 Date of last published report ND
3.3 Report publication cycle ND
3.4 Contacts for questions relative to the report and its content 184
3.5 Process for the definition of the report's content 74
3.6 Limit of the report 52, 74-75

3.7 Specific limitations regarding the scope or limit of the report 52, 74-75

3.8
Basis of preparation of the report, with respect to joint ventures, subsidiaries, rented facilities, operations attributed to external 
services provided to other entities, capable of significantly affecting comparison between different periods and/or organisations

128-137, 
141-143

3.9
Data measurement techniques and calculation basis, including the underlying assumptions and techniques, estimates applied and 
compilation of indicators and other information presented in the report

110-180

3.10 Explanation of the effect of any reformulation of information existing in previous reports and the reasons for this reformulation 110-180
3.11 Significant alterations relative to previous reports to the scope, limit or methods of measurement applied 110-180
3.12 Summary of the content of the GRI 180-184
3.13 Policy and current practice relative to the search for an independent process to ensure the report’s reliability 74-82

4. Governance, Commitments and Involvement
Governance

4.1
Governance structure of the organisation, including commissions subordinated to the hierarchically highest governance body
and responsible for special tasks, such as the definition of the organisation’s strategy and/or supervision

59-71

4.2 Indication as to whether the Chairperson of the Board of Directors is an executive member 61
4.3 Number of independent and/or not executive members of the Board of Directors 59-73
4.4 Mechanisms allowing shareholders and employees to convey recommendations/guidelines to the Board of Directors 59-73

4.5
Relationship between the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors, senior directors and executive staff, and the organisation’s 
performance

70-73

4.6 Processes in place for the Board of Directors to ensure conflicts of interest are avoided 75-77

4.7
Process to determine the qualifications and skills required by the members of the Board of Directors in order to define
the organisation’s strategy on issues linked to the economic, environmental and social performance

59-69

4.8 
Mission, codes of conduct and principles considered relevant for the economic, environmental and social performance, as well as 
the implementation phase

52-56

4.9 
Processes of the Board of Directors to supervise the way the organisation carries out the identification and management of the
economic, environmental and social performance, the identification and management of relevant risks and relevant opportunities,
as well as adherence to or conformity with the internationally accepted standards, codes of conduct and principles

12-56, 
74-77, 
92-93

PAGES 
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4.10 
Processes for the assessment of the performance of the Board of Directors, especially with respect to
economic, environmental and social performance

12-50, 
53-55, 
85-97, 

154-158

Commitments to external initiatives
4.11 Explanation as to whether the principle of precaution is addressed by the organisation and, if so, in which way 75-77

4.12
Charters, principles or other initiatives developed externally of economic, environmental and social nature that the company
subscribes to or defends

21-22, 
40, 

47-48

4.13 Main memberships of national or international associations and/or organisations 83

Involvement of the Interested Parties
4.14 Relationship of the groups comprising the Interested Parties involved through the organisation 22-59
4.15 Basis for the identification and selection of the Interested Parties to be involved 52-59

4.16 
Approach used to involve the Interested Parties, including the frequency of the involvement, by type and by groups of
interested parties

22-57, 
74-77, 83

4.17 Main issues and concerns identified through the Interested Parties and measures adopted by the organisation in their treatment
52-59, 

128-130

5. Management Approach and Performance Indicators
Economic Performance Indicators
Aspect: Economic Performance

EC1 E Direct economic value generated and distributed
95-96, 

107,178
EC2 E Financial implications and other risks and opportunities for the organisation's activities due to climate change 48-50

EC3 E Coverage of the liabilities relative to the organisation’s defined benefits plan
35,119, 

161

EC4 E Significant financial assistance from the Government
12, 89-
90, 94, 

118,177

Aspect: Presence in the Market
EC5 C Ratio between the lowest salary and the local minimum salary ND
EC6 E Policy, practices and proportion of costs related to local suppliers 57-58

EC7 E Procedures for local hiring and proportion of senior management staff hired from the local community ND

Aspect: Indirect Economic Impacts

EC8 E
Development and impact of the investments in infrastructures and services essentially aimed to benefit the public, through
commercial involvement in kind or pro bono

37-48

EC9 C Description and analysis of the most significant indirect economic impacts, including their extent

12-19, 
74-77, 
92-96, 

125-127
Environmental Performance Indicators
Aspect: Materials

EN1 E Total materials used by weight or volume NR
EN2 E Percentage of materials used that have been recycled NR

Aspect: Energy
EN3 E Direct energy consumption, detailed by primary energy source 49, 180
EN4 E Indirect energy consumption, detailed by primary energy source ND
EN5 C Total energy saved due to conservation and efficiency improvements ND

EN6 C
Initiatives to provide energy-efficient or renewable energy-based products and services and lower energy consumption as a result 
of these initiatives

ND

EN7 C Initiatives to decrease indirect energy consumption and the reductions achieved ND
Aspect: Water

EN8 E Consumption of water by source 49-50
EN9 C Water sources significantly affected by the water consumption 49-50
EN10 C Percentage and total volume of recycled and reused water NR

Aspect: Biodiversity

EN11 E
Location and area of land owned, rented or administered by the organisation, inside protected zones, or zones adjacent to them, 
and in areas with high biodiversity indices outside protected zones

NR

EN12 E
Description of any significant impacts of the activity, products and services on the biodiversity of protected areas and areas with 
high biodiversity indices outside protected areas

NR

EN13 C Habitats that are protected or have been restored NR
EN14 C Strategies, current actions and future plans for the management of impacts on biodiversity NR

EN15 C
Number of IUCN Red List species and national conservation list species with habitats in areas affected
by the operations, by level of extinction risk

NR

Aspect: Emissions, Effluents and Waste
EN16 E Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions, by weight 48-49
EN17 E Other relevant indirect greenhouse gas emissions, by weight ND
EN18 C Initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and reductions achieved ND
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EN19 E Emissions of ozone-depleting substances, by weight 54-55
EN20 E NOx, SOx and other significant atmospheric emissions, by type and weight ND
EN21 E Total water discharge by quality and use ND
EN22 E Total quantity of waste by type and method of disposal 50
EN23 E Total number and volume of significant spills NR

EN24 C
Weight of the transported, imported and exported waste, under the terms of the Basel Convention, and percentage waste that is 
transported internationally

ND

EN25 C
Identity, size, status of protection and value of the biodiversity of the water resources and respective habitats affected in a 
significant way by surface discharge and flow

NR

Aspect: Products and Services
EN26 E Initiatives to mitigate environmental impacts of products and services and degree of reduction of the impact 48-50
EN27 E Percentage recovery of products and their packaging, by category NR

Aspect: Conformity

EN28 E
Values involved in the payment of significant fines and total number of non-monetary penalties incurred due to non-compliance 
with environmental laws and regulations

NR

Aspect: Transport

EN29 C
Significant environmental impacts, arising from the transport of products and other goods or raw materials used in the 
organisation’s operations, as well as in staff transport

ND

Aspect: General
EN30 C Total costs and investments related to environmental protection, by type ND
Performance Indicators relative to Labour Practices and Decent Working Conditions

Aspect: Employment

LA1 E Total labour by type of employment, by employment contract and region
31, 34, 

175

LA2 E Total number of employees and turnover, by age group, gender and region 31, 175
LA3 C Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not offered to temporary or part-time employees NR

Aspect: Relations between the Employees and the Management
LA4 E Percentage of employees covered by collective labour agreements 31

LA5 E
Minimum prior notification established in the event of operating alterations, including whether this procedure is noted in the
collective labour agreements

ND

Aspect: Health and Safety at Work

LA6 C
Percentage of the total workforce represented in formal health and safety committees, who help monitor and advise in 
occupational health and safety programmes

ND

LA7 E Rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, absenteeism and number of work-related fatalities, by region 31, 175

LA8 E
Programs for education, training, counselling, prevention and control of risk underway to ensure assistance to employees, their 
families or members of the community, affected by serious illnesses

NR

LA9 C Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements with trade unions ND
Aspect: Training and Education

LA10 E Average number of hours of training per year, by employee and detailed by category of position 32, 175

LA11 C
Programmes for skills management and lifelong learning that support the continued employability of employees and assist career 
management

32

LA12 C Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews 34
Aspect: Diversity and equal opportunities

LA13 E
Composition of the governing bodies of the company and list of employees by category according to gender, age group, minorities
and other indicators of diversity

59-62, 
175

LA14 E Details on the ratio of the basic salary between men and women, by category of position NR
Social Performance Indicators
Human Rights

Aspect: Investment and Acquisition Practices

HR1 E
Percentage and total number of significant investment agreements that include human rights clauses or that have undergone 
human rights screening

NR

HR2 E
Percentage of the main suppliers and companies contracted that were submitted to assessment in relation to their performance on 
human rights and measures taken

ND

HR3 C
Total number of hours of training on policies and procedures concerning aspects of human rights that are relevant to
operations, including the percentage of employees trained

NR

Aspect: Non-Discrimination
HR4 E Total number of cases of discrimination and actions taken NR

Aspect: Freedom of Association and Collective Labour Agreement

HR5 E
Cases where there is significant risk of impediment to the free exercise freedom of association and collective labour agreements, 
and measures contributing towards their  elimination

NR

Aspect: Child Labour
HR6 E Cases where there is significant risk of the occurrence of child labour, and measures contributing to their elimination NR

Aspect: Forced and Slave Labour
HR7 E Cases where there is significant risk of the occurrence of forced or slave labour, and measures contributing to their elimination NR

Aspect: Security Practices

HR8 C
Percentage of security personnel trained in the organisation’s policies or procedures concerning aspects of human rights that are 
relevant to operations

NR

Aspect: Rights of Indigenous Peoples
HR9 C Total number of incidents involving the violation of the rights of indigenous people and actions taken NR
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Company
Aspect: Community

SO1 E
Nature, scope and effectiveness of any programs and practices that assess and manage the impacts of operations on communities 
including at the time of their installation, operation and exit

ND

Aspect: Corruption
SO2 E Percentage and total number of business units analysed for risks related to corruption 76-77
SO3 E Percentage of employees given training in the organisation’s anti-corruption policies and procedures NR
SO4 E Measures taken in response to incidents of corruption NR

Aspect: Public Policies
SO5 E Positions regarding public policies and participation in the development of public policies and lobbying NR
SO6 C Total value of financial and in-kind contributions to political parties, politicians and related institutions, by country NR

Aspect: Unfair Competition
SO7 C Total number of lawsuits actions due to unfair competition, anti-trust and monopoly practices, as well as their outcomes 147

Aspect: Conformity

SO8 E
Values involved in the payment of significant fines and total number of non-monetary penalties incurred due to non-compliance with  
environmental laws and regulations

NR

 Product Responsibility
Aspect: Health and Safety of the Customer

PR1 E
Life-cycles of products and services where health and safety impacts are assessed for the purpose of making improvements, as well 
as the percentage of the main categories of products and services subject to these procedures

ND

PR2 C
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning the concerning health and safety 
impacts of products and services, during their respective life-cycle, detailed by type of outcome

ND

Aspect: Labelling of Products and Services

PR3 E
Type of information on products and services required by regulations, and percentage of significant products and services subject 
to these requirements

NR

PR4 C
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning the information and labelling of 
products and services, by type of outcome

NR

PR5 C Procedures related to customer satisfaction, including results of surveys measuring customer satisfaction 23-24
Aspect: Marketing Communication

PR6 E
Programs for observance of the laws, standards and voluntary codes relative to marketing communication, including advertising, 
promotion and sponsorship

NR

PR7 C
Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning marketing communication, including 
advertising, promotion and sponsorship, by type of outcome

NR

Aspect: Customer Privacy
PR8 C Total number of claims recorded in relation to breaches of customer privacy NR

Aspect: Conformity

PR9 E
Monetary value of significant fines for non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning the provision and use of products and 
services

NR

Source: GRI (2006) - “G3: Guidelines for the Preparation of Sustainability Reports”
C - Additional indicator.
E - Essential indicator
NR - Indicator that is “not relevant” or “not applicable”
ND - Indicator that is “not available” or “partially available”

For further information, please contact:
      Management and Audit Control Office

Sociedade de Transportes Colectivos do Porto, SA
Av. Fernão de Magalhães, 1862-13º

4350-158 Porto
e-mail: geral@stcp.pt
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ECONOMIC RATIONALITY

GUARANTEE
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9. Legal Certification of Accounts
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quality

HEALTH AT WORK
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10. Supervisory Board’s Report and Opinion 
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